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1 FOREWORD
The fifth financial year of the National Heritage Council
(NHC) was tainted by the tragic and mysterious passing of
the Chairperson of the Council , Mr Ntobeko Maqubela. It
was a sombre period for the NHC. I thank the Council for
the support that management needed to ensure that our
Chairperson received a dignified farewell. May his soul rest
in peace.

Acting chairperson, Prof. R. Ralebipi-Simela

On the cheerful side of the business, notable milestones
can be counted as we close the year. The second Council ,
to which I was elected Deputy Chairperson , was appointed
in September 2007. It exercised its supervisory and
governance role with diligence and in line with agreed
strategy. During the process of developing the strategy of
the NHC for the financial year under review, members of the
new Council not only regarded it as a formal induction to
the business but took the process as an opportunity to test
each programme for its fitness and relevance to the NHC
mandate and strategic priorities.
The Council focused on encouraging the NHC to concentrate
on policy advice to the Minister of Arts and Culture ; the
participation of communities in heritage matters through
direct and wide consultations; and positioning heritage as
a significant catalyst of nation building. The priority that
continued to inform programmes was to incorporate all
elements that will assist in tapping the economic potential
of the heritage sector. Programmes that have lived up to
these ideals are, to mention a few, the National Liberation
Heritage Route, the Ubuntu in Nation Building Campaign ,
Schools Education Programme, the South African Traditional
Music Awards and the Heritage Transformation Charter.

Throughout the year, the Council discharged its role in an
impeccable manner that displayed a desired team spirit.
The Council comprises committed individuals with a wide
range of relevant expertise and experience in both heritage
matters and corporate governance. I am, therefore,
confident that the role of the Council was executed
effectively, thus assisting the NHC to consolidate its
achievements and increase its significance as a role player
in nation building and the democratization of our country.

Prof. R. Ralebipi-Simela
Acting chairperson
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2 OVERVIEW
The growth of the NHC and the heritage sector is rapidly
gaining momentum, drawing strength from the previous
government's term of office. The past five years has laid a
firm foundation for policy insights, developmental vision,
innovative interventions and repositioning the sector to
contribute more significantly to the economy.

CEO, Adv. Sonwabile Mancotywa

Several policy studies were made to investigate the regime's
relevance to the current challenges facing the sector.
Stakeholders in the sector need to be commended for the
diligent support in the policy analysis exercises embarked
upon by the NHC. The outcome of the engagements with
stakeholders has enabled the NHC to establish sufficient
ground to develop policies that will unlock the potential
of the sector. In other policy areas, regulatory instruments
are required to protect the heritage of South Africa more
effectively. These include the repatriation of heritage,
ethics in the sector, heritage conservation and development,
and access to heritage.
The shortage of funding in the sector remains a challenge,
but the NHC has made a significant contribution in assisting
community heritage projects to play their role in protecting
and promoting their heritage. A sizeable percentage of the
budget was distributed to projects that would ordinarily
not be funded by the corporate sector. This has been an
intervention that the NHC prioritised as a strategic role that
it will continue to advance.
Extending our strategic value in the sector, the Heritage
Unit of the NHC concentrated on priorities derived
from the National Heritage Council Act (Act 11 of 1999):
transformation of the sector, providing policy advice to
the Minister of Arts and Culture, co-ordinating the sector,
resource mobilisation, education and awareness.

These priorities gave the NHC the opportunity to extend its
projects and programmes from the experts in heritage to
ordinary community members and learners in schools across
the country. Flagship projects include:
Heritage education for schools;
the Ubuntu campaign;
the Heritage Transformation Charter;
Strategic partnerships;
Diplomatic relations; and
Liberation heritage route.
The governance of the NHC again lived up to expectations
and reflected the dedication of the staff.

Adv. Sonwabile Mancotywa
Chief Executive Officer

3 ORGANISATIONAL INSIGHT
3.1
a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

f)
g)

h)
i)
j)
k)

CORI FUNC ONS
The core functions of the NHC as expressed in the NHC Act, are to:
Advise the Minister on:
i. National policies on heritage matters, including indigenous knowledge
systems , treasures , restitution and other relevant matters ; and
ii. any other matter concernmg hentage which the Minister may from
time to time determine ;
Advise the Minister on the allocation of core funding to declared cultural
institutions ;
Investigate ways and means of effecting the repatriation of South African
heritage objects presently held by foreign governments , public and private
institutions and individuals;
Make grants to any person , organisation or institution to promote and
develop national heritage activities and resources ;
Co-ordinate the activities of public institutions involved in heritage
management in an integrated manner to ensure optimum use of State
resources:
Monitor and co-ordinate the transformation of the heritage sector, with
special emphasis on the development of hentage projects ;
Consult and liaise with relevant stakeholders on heritage matters ;
Generally support , nurture and develop access to institutions and
programmes that promote and bring equity to heritage management;
Promote an awareness of the history of all our peoples, including the
history of enslavement in South Africa ;
Lobby to secure funding for heritage management and to create a greater
public awareness of the importance of our nation's heritage; and
Perform such duties in respect of its objects as the Minister may assign to
it.
The Council may on its own initiative advise the Minister on any matter
concerning heritage.

3.2
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

3. 3

NHC PRIORITIES
Priorities of the NHC's strategic planning between 2008 and 2011 are to:
Provide the Minister of Arts and Culture with sound policy advice on all
national heritage matters;
Equitably redress inclusivity;
Enhance the role of Ubuntu in nation building;
Improve co-ordination and management of the sector;
Position the heritage sector as a significant contributor to socio-economic
development;
Improve resource mobilisation efforts by the NHC;
Enhance public awareness, education and stakeholder relations; and
Guide institutional development of the NHC and heritage organisations.

VISION
The NHC strives to be the leading agent for the preservation, protection
and promotion of South African heritage, both tangible and intangible, for
sustainable development.

3.4

M SSION
Co-ordinate heritage management, informed by stakeholder
consultation and engagement;
Provide a transformation strategy and framework for the heritage
sector to embrace South Africa's diverse heritage in the interest of
national identity;
Facilitate the development of heritage policies through consultations
and partnerships with key sector role players;
Advise the Minister of Arts and Culture on heritage policies and other
heritage matters;
Play a leading role in the establishment of policy for the repatriation of
South African heritage resources;
Promote, mainstream and foreground living heritage, with particular

emphasis on Ubuntu as a resource for nation building;
Provide a framework for the sustainable use of heritage resources in
social development to unlock the economic potential of South Africa 's
national heritage ; and
Facilitate the establishment of strategic partnerships with heritage
stakeholders and role-players nationally, regional and internationally.

3.5

VALUES

•

lnclusivity and ownership;
Holistic approach ;
Diversity within the context of national unity ;
Integrity;
Ubuntu and
Creativity.

4

PERFORMANCE REPORT
R. TG .C ·ocL
The Strategic Focus of the NHC is presented hereunder:

.

Balance Scorecard Perspective

Strategic Focus Areas

Prim ary goal perspective

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

To provide the Minister with policy advice
Funding and resource mobilisation
Mainstreaming intangible heritage
Nation building programmes
Leadership through intellectual expertise
Continued support from the Department of Arts and Culture and Government
Transformation of the sector
Public awareness
Ensure strong corporate image/identity
Coordination of heritage management

Stakeholder Perspective

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Facilitation and development of Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with NHC stakeholders
Recognition for leadership through technical expertise. Reputation for reliability in service delivery.
Leadership in transformation of the heritage sector.
Effective coordination of the Heritage Sector
Intergovernmental co-operation

Processes and Systems Perspective

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Increase NHC's capacity for Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
Development and sustenance of world class internal organisational processes and systems
Enhanced governance, risk and financial management
Reliable information management systems
Adherence to supply chain management protocol

Learnin g and Gr owth Per spective

1.
2.
3.
4.

Enhance research and information capacity
Effective internal communication
Building a caring and compassionate NHC
Ongoing capacity building of NHC staff

PRIMARY GOAL PERSPECTIVE
The primary goal perspective is addressing the strategic priorities that focus on the core business of the NHC and are listed below :
To provide the Minister of Arts and Culture with sound policy advice on all national heritage matters ;
Equitable redress and inclusivity;
Enhance the role of Ubuntu in nation building ;
Improve co -ordination and management of the sector;
Position the heritage sector as a significant contributor to socio-economic development ;
Improve resources mobilisation efforts of the NHC ;
Public awareness, education and stakeholder relations.

Strategic Outcome

a) Provide the
Mintster w1th
poliCy adviCe

1. An established NHC
Heritage {core business)
Portfolio Committee
which sets policy framework

Seeking Council resolution
to establish a Hentage
Committee

Functional Heritage
Committee and draft
heritage policies
recommended to Council

2008 / 09- 2010/11

Done. Council established a Heritage
Committee on 23 February 2008.

2. Key policy areas
Identified and researched
per each financial year

Development , submission
and approval of
national heritage pol1cies

National framework for
harmonizing heritage
conservation
and development

2008/09- 2010 / 11

Done. Held an Expert
- Meeting on 1st - 2nd April 2009.
Ongoing: Policy framework being developed.

The Heritage
Transformation Charter

2008 / 09 - 2010 / 11

Done. Council endorsed the Charter in
December 2008. The Charter is ready
for submission to the Ministry within
200912010.

Policy on the Digitization
of Heritage

200812009.

Taken over: DAC has taken over this
project and NHC will still support it.

Policy on Public Access to
Heritage Institutions

2008 / 09 - 2010 / 11

Ongoing: Research towards the
development of Policy Framework.

2008 / 09 - 2010/11

Taken over: DAC has taken over
this project and NHC will still support it .

Development of standards
and codes of ethics for
heritage practitioners

2008 / 09 - 2010/11

Ongoing : A new policy area starting
Oct 2008. Research towards
development of Policy Framework.

An updated and effective
NHC Funding Policy

2008 / 09

Consultation meetings were held with the
stakeholders i.e. Funding Committee ,
NHC Council on the policy review
{November 2008 Council sitting and
Dec 2009 Funding Committee workshop)

~

r
1-

-- - Policy Framework on place
name changes

..
b) Fundmg and
resource
mobilization

1. Reviewed NHC
Fundmg Policy

Ana lyse and assess the
efficacy of the NHC
Funding Policy to identify
possible gaps and
deficiencies

Ncot1ondl HRltCOQP Council Arnudl Ro>port 2008/g

l

Programme

2. Developed Resource
Mobilization Strategy

Funding needs analysis

a) Needs assessment for
funds and resources report
b) Stakeholder Engagement
c) Strategy for resource
mobilization

2008/09

2010/11

This will be covered during the Funders'
Conference planned for around
9th-10th July 2009 where all stakeholders
will be participating for inputs into the
following:
Impact study around funding;
Formation of the Funders' Forum;
and Heritage Funding Strategy

3. Mobilized funds and
resources for targeted
strategic programmes
and projects

Increase funds mobilization

a) Developed busmess
proposals
b) Partnerships with
funders I sponsors
c) Increased funding
for heritage projects
and programmes

2008/09

2010/11

Done m October 2008 for identified
programmes through the National
Lotteries Board with a commitment
towards approved programmes
for three years.

4. An established Funding
Forum to coordinate
sector funding

Setting up sector
funding forum

a) Consultation with
1dent1fied funding bodies
for constitution of a
funding forum
b) Developed terms of
reference for the
funding forum
c) Periodic review of
the functioning of the
funding forum

2008/09- 2010/11

This to be formed during the Funders'
Conference planned for around
9th-1Oth July 2009.
This will be guided by engagements of
the difference clusters targeted for
participation during the conference.
A resolution around the review will
be taken at the Funders' Conference
on July 9th-10th.

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

Programme

5. An impact study
report on sector funding

Service delivery indicator

Timeline

Status Report/Remedial Action

a) Report on assessment
and trends on funding of
the sector

2008/09. 2010/11

This is underway with funding entities
being consulted and impact study report
will be presented at the Funders'
Conference. June-Nov 2009

b) Funding impact
study report
c) Mainstreaming
intangible heritage

1. Developed framework
on integration of
Intangible Heritage into
Heritage Resource
Management

Develop integration
framework

a) Conducting needs
assessment
b) Produce a report on
the needs assessment

2008/09. 2010/11

To commence after the ratification of the
national policy on Intangible Heritage by
DAC.

2. Implementation of
National Policy on
Intangible Heritage.
(DACDriven Process)

Implement National Policy
on Intangible Heritage

a) Conduct advocacy
workshops
b) Engaging stakeholders
c) Monitor and evaluate
implementation

2008/09. 2010/11

To commence after the ratification of the
national policy on Intangible Heritage by
DAC.

3. Implementation of
UNESCO Convention on
safeguarding of
Intangible Heritage
(Upon finalization
of ratification)

Implement ratified UNESCO a) Conduct advocacy
Convention on Safeguarding workshops
b) Engaging stakeholders
intangible Heritage
c) Monitor and evaluate
implementation

2008/09 . 2010/11

Awaiting ratification of UNESCO
ICH policy by South Africa.

4. Integration of
Intangible Heritage into
education sector,
including oral
history programme

Integrate Intangible
Heritage into curricula of
educational institutions

2008/09 . 2010/11

To commence after the ratification of
the National Policy on Intangible Heritage
by DAC

a) Engaging stakeholders
b) Promotion and
incorporation of Intangible
Heritage into the
education sector

d) Nation building
programmes

1. Ubuntu Awards

Hosting Ubuntu Awards

Service delivery indicator

Timeline

Status Report/Remedial Action

a) Annual Ubuntu Awards

2008/09. 2010/11

Done for 2008/09 financial year.
+

2. More awareness and
embracing of
Ubuntu values

3. Integration of Ubuntu
in major policy
programmes

Public Awareness and
Education on Ubuntu

Integrate Ubuntu into
public policy

a) Establishment of
National Advisory
Committee on Ubuntu

2008/09

2010/11

(a) Done. Ubuntu Advisory Panel has
been formally established.

b) Hosting of Annual
National lmbizo
on Ubuntu

(b) Done. Held Ubuntu lmbizo and Awards
Ceremony in September 2008
· Limpopo Province.

c) Integration of Ubuntu
principles and values
into schools' curriculum

(c) Held Education Symposium on
20 March 2009. Towards integration of
heritage into education programmes.

a) An investigation of policy
implications of Ubuntu values
b) Identification of public
policies with a potential of
integrating Ubuntu
c) Policy development
and integration

2008/09 · 2010/11

In progress: Exploratory research in
process.

Strategic Objective
4. An established
Liberation Heritage Route

Appointment of service
provider to develop
a business case

Service delivery indicator

Timeline

Status Report/Remedial Action

a) Conduct research
and feasibility study
b) Holding of a public
launch of the
Research Programme

2008 / 09 · 2010 / 11

(a) In progress. 1st and 2nd Phase
reports are done. 3rd Phase in progress.
(b) Research Programme at the Walter
Sisulu University in September 2008

c) Development of
business case

(c) Draft report of 3rd Phase (final) of Business
Case in circulation for input and comment .

d) Stakeholder consultation
and engagement

(d) National and Provincial Summits took
place on 26th 27th February 2009 , and
25th ·26th March 2009. Report in circulation .

e) Setting of National
Structures and Task Team

(e) In progress. Identification of
stakeholders and partners

f) Public launch of the
Liberation Heritage Route

(f) National launch took place April 2008.

g) Development and
submission of nomination
dossier for listing of
Liberation Route on UNESCO
World Heritage List

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

Programme

5. Implementation
of 2nd Phase of Unsung
Heroes and Heroines

6. Implementation of
2nd Volume of Early
African Intellectuals

7. Documentation of
history of slavery in
South Africa

Service delivery indicator

Timeline

Status Report/Remedial Action

Implement Phase 2 of the
a) Conduct research,
Unsung Heroes and Heroines interviews and
documentation of
narratives of Unsung
Heroes and Heroines
b) Stakeholder engagement
and consultation
c) Production of
audio-visual documentation
d) Production of report

2008/09. 2010/11

In progress: Engagement of service
provider (researchers) in 2009/2010.

Implement Phase 2 of
Early African Intellectuals

a) Conduct research and
documentation
b) Stakeholder engagement
and consultation
c) Production of a
publication

2008/09 -

a) Preliminary research done.

a) Report on research and
documentation of history
of slavery in South Africa
b) Stakeholder engagement
and consultation framework
c) Production of report
/text publication of report
on slavery in South Africa

2008/09 - 2010/11

Commission of the
documentation of history
of slavery in South Africa

b) In progress
c) In progress
d) In progress
The project was temporarily placed on
hold pending a review in the
next financ1al year.

Status Report/Remedial Action

1. Developed Heritage
Transformation Charter

e) Transformation
of the sector

Stakeholders engagement

I

~

2. Implemented
Transformation Charter

3. Monitoring
and evaluation

Coordinate and facilitate
the implementation.

2008/09 - 2010/11
a) Developed terms of
reference and appointed
Transformation
Task Team
b) Stakeholder engagements
and consultations
c) Completion, submission
and adoption of the
Transformation Charter
by the NHC (Council)
d) Submission of the adopted
Charter to the Ministry (DAC)

a), b) and c) Done

(d) In progress (submission scheduled
for 2009/10 financial year)

a) Dissemination and
promotion of the
Transformation Charter
b) Roll-out implementation
programmes
c) Development of an
incentive programme
for implementation

2008/09- 2010/11

To commence after endorsement by the
Ministry (DAC)

a) Monitoring and
evaluation of the
Transformation Charter
b) Produce an
implementation
report regularly.

2008/09- 2010/11

To commence after the implementation
of the transformation charter.

Programme
f) Public awareness
and education

1. Public relations
and advocacy activities

Service delivery indicator
a) Conduct a national
road show to provincial
stakeholders for advocacy
b) Production and circulation
of a bi-annual heritage
magazine

c) Coordinated exhibitions
at the Tourism lndaba,
Multilingual Awards,
South African Traditional
Music Awards, Zindala Zombili

e) Coordinated participation
of staff and stakeholders
at ABSA relay, Spar Fun Run,
Radio702 Walk and Talk
f) Conducted promotions
through public competitions:
Young Heritage Ambassadors
essay competitions and
produced a publication
g) Hosted stakeholders at a
national musiC festival

2008/09- 2010/11

(a) Done in Limpopo in 2008.

Bi-annually

(b) First 1ssue done. Second issue on hold
due to termination of service provider's
contract. The contract was terminated
following the liquidation of the service
provider. The appomtment of a new
publisher is underway
(c) Done, exhibitions were hosted at the
Multilingual Awards, Zindala Zombili,
and SATMA. Tourism indaba
excluded due to financial constraints.
(d) Programme was reprioritized to
allow for other strategic projects.
(e) The project was reprioritized, and
rescheduled for 2009/10 to be
implemented m September.
The focus for 2008/09 was on Ubuntu.
(f) Stakeholders were hosted at the
Cape Town International Jazz Festival.

Strategic Objective
Z. Developed
med1a strategy

Develop media strategy
and communication
framework

a) Create partnerships with
the med1a on strategic
NHC programmes

Timeline

Status Report/Remedial Action

ZOOB/09 · Z010/11

a) SAFM, Sunday Times, City Press ,
Independent Newspapers, BBQ Magazine
were secured as media partners in the
anniversary celebration month of
February Z009 and conferences between
February and April Z009.
b) Advertising in various media was
placed to publicise heritage projects
in February Z009 and March Z009.

ZOOB/09 · Z010/11

a), c) & d) A heritage Communications
Forum was proposed to the CEOs'
Forum, approved and formed.

b) Partner with the media
on unsolicited heritage
campaigns initiated
by media houses
3. Established
Heritage
Communicators' Forum

a) Approval from the
Heritage CEOs and
Directors' forum
Invite communicators
and host two annual
meeting per annum
b) Established a
coordinating team
c) Produced joint
communication
programme
d) Reviewed functioning
of the forum

d) Preparations for a larger Arts Culture
and Heritage Communicators' Forum
were made and will be convened in
collaboration with DAC to
establish co·operations.

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

Programme

Service delivery indicator

Programme

h) Heritage as a
contribu tion to
soc1o-economic
development

1 . Developed model on
heritage contribu tion to
the economy

Commission audit

Status Report/R emedial Action

a) Conduct a national survey 2008/09 - 2010/11
on contribu tion of heritage
to economy

Taken over by DAC but NHC continues to
support the initiative .

b) Development of a
business case
c) Consultation of
stakeholders
d) Develop a model as
a yardstick
e) Publish a report on the
economic contribu tion
of heritage
2. Development of
Sports Heritage and 2010
Soccer World Cup
legacy programme

Develop heritage legacy
programmes

a) Conduct research
2008/09 -2010/11
and documentation
b) Stakeholder engagement
and consultation
c) Production of audio-visual
documentation and
publication
d) Capture and exhibit visual
history of sports heritage
by the Young Artists

Research in progress.

STAKEHODER SERVICE PERSPECT'VE
1.

The stakeholder service perspective addresses two of the strategiC priorities that largely focus
on the core business of the NHC and are listed below :
• Improve co -ordination and management of the sector;
• Public awareness, education and stakeholder relations .

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

i) Facilitation and
developmen t of
memoranda of
understanding
(MOUs) with
NHC stakeholders

1. Strengthened and
formalized relations
with stakeholders

j) Intergovernm ental 1. Developed partnerships
co-operation
based on cooperative
/relations
governance with
stakeholders e.g.
National House of
Traditional Leaders,
Department Education
and etc.

I Programme

I Service delivery indicator

Timeline

IStatus report I

I(a) and (b) In progress

Foster partnerships
with NHC stakeholders

a) Developed stakeholder
matrix
b) Developed MOUs on
common areas of
mutual interest
c) Evaluated effectiveness
of MOUs

2008/09 - 2010/11

Foster partnerships

Formalized engagements
through MOUs and MOAs

2008/09 - 2010/11

Remedial action

(c) To commence after completion
of (a) and (b)

l

In progress and ongoing: Draft MOUs
with SATMA, National House of
Traditional Leaders, Education
Department and Moral Regeneration
Movement

Status report I Remedial action

Service delivery indicator

k) Coordination of
heritage
management

1. An effective management Develop heritage sector
and co-ordination at all
coordinating strategy
levels across the sector.

a) Coordinated meetings
of forums: CEOs and
directors, funding,
communication,
heritage practitioners
b) an implemented
coordination plan, common
programmes of forums.

2008/09- 2010/11

In progress and ongoing

2. An integrated heritage
programme into local
government's Integrated
Development Plans (IDPs)

a) Engagement and
consultation with local
government
b) an implemented
coordination plan,
common programmes
of forums .

2008/09- 2010/11

(a) In progress and ongoing
(b) To commence in 2009/10

Integration of heritage
programmes into IDPs
of local governments

SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE
1.

The systems and processes perspective addresses the strategic priority that focuses mainly on the support business of the NHC and is :
• Institutional development of the National Heritage Council and heritage organisations

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

Programme

Service delivery indicator

Timeline

Status Report I Remedial action

l) Increase NHC's
capacity for
planning, monitoring
and evaluation

1. A governance
monitoring and evaluation
framework of the NHC
(to accommodate,
quarterly and annual
reviews by the council)

Develop M&E framework

a) Planning, monitoring
and evaluation of annual
calendar

2008/09 - 2010/11

In progress and ongoing
The development of the monitoring and
evaluation framework will be
completed in 2009/10 financial year

2. Periodic and annual
reports on governance,
risks, financial and human
resources reporting

Develop governance
and reporting framework

Developed published
t imef rames for
compliance requirements

2008/09

Done for 2008/09. Quarterly reports,
PFMA compliance reporting and
financial reports were compiled
and submitted to DAC

1. A business operations
framework for effective
units delivery, including
review of policies and
processes

Develop operations
framework

Communicated planning
and process review
mechanism

2009/10

m) Development
and sustainment of
world class
internal
organisational
processes
and systems

2010/11

To commence in 2009/10

Timeline
n) Enhanced
governance, risk
and financial
management

1. Sound financial policies
and procedures

Develop governance tools

a) Develop and implement
2008/09 ·2010/11
policies, ensure compliance
and adherence
b) Continual review,
monitoring and management
of performance

Status Report I Remedial action
(a) In the year under review, no
new policies were developed.
(b) Compliance to policies is monitored
regularly, cases of non compliance
are reported and addressed

2. Proper planmng
and budgeting

Plan and budget
properly

a) Develop and
implement
significance framework
b) Manage and monitor
performance of the budget
and ensure no
over-expenditure

2008/09 ·2010/11

(a) The materiality framework for
2008/09 was developed and submitted
to DAC
(b) Monitoring of budget and
expenditure is done regularly;
management accounts are produced
monthly and tabled in
management meetings

3. Managed expenditure ,
revenue , assets, liabilities
and salary admmistration

Develop financial
reporting framework

Adherence to PFMA on
reporting such as:

2008/09 ·2010/11

Compliance to PFMA is monitored
continually. The PFMA compliance
checklist is done quarterly and
submitted to DAC
(a) Preparation of annual financial
statements and annual report
2008/09 is complete
(b) Status of the audit report will be
known after the completion of the audit

a) Annual reports and
annual financial statements
b) Achievement of
unqualified reports

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

o) Reliable
information
management systems

1. Financial system that
generates accurate and
reliable management
reports

Produce custom designed
2008/09 -2010/11
systems that are user friendly
and able to produce reports
per required formats
of the organization

For 2008/09 we have reviewed and
upgraded our IT systems and
infrastructure to be more appropnate
and effective. The new larger server has
been procured and installed

2. Securely preserved
organizational information

Implemented data
management system

2008/09 -2010/11

In progress and ongoing.
The first phase of the project,
i.e. operation clean up of records is
complete. Second and final phases to
be rolled out in 2009/10.

3. Proper management
of IT assets

Adherence to developed IT
policies on prevention of
piracy, disposal of IT
assets and provision
for obsolescence

2008/09 -2010/11

IT policies are currently m place and are
implemented. An audit of IT equipment
was conducted and all obsolete assets
were identified and disposed

Programme

Programme
p) Adherence to
Supply Chain
Management
protocol

1. Effective provision of
PFMA, Supply Chain
Management Framework
and other relevant
legislation

Implement SCM policy
and protocol

a) Implemented policies and 2008 / 09 -2010 / 11
procedures, delegation
of functions and threshold
b) Promotion of Black
Economic Empowerment

(a) In progress. Adherence
of SCM policy is strictly monitored,
SCM circulars are issued to
enforce compliance
(b) 80% of procurement done during
the financial year has been channeled
to BEE

2. Understanding of
procurement and PPFA
policies, procedures
and regulations .

Apply PPFA policies
and protocols

a) Effective implementation
of PPFA and regulations, no
litigations , fruitless ,
irregular or unauthorized
expenditure due to errors
in applying the legislation

In progress. The provisions
of the PPFA and regulations are
implemented in every procurement
process within the NHC. Proper systems
have been developed to avoid fruitless,
irregular and unauthorised expenditure.

3. Fair dealings and ethics

Maintenance of NHC's
Code of Conduct
and ethics

a) No conflict of interest
b) Above board processes

2008 / 09 -2010 / 11

1
2008/09 -2010 / 11

In progress. Proper
procurement structures are in place to
eliminate any conflict of interest in all
procurement of goods and services.
SCM practitioners, Internal Bid
Committee members sign the Code of
Conduct

LEARNING AND GROWTH PERSPECTIVE
1.

The learning and growth perspective addresses the strategic priorities that focus on the support function of the NHC:
• Institutional development of the National Heritage Council and heritage organisations

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

Programmes

Service delivery indicator

q) Building a caring
and compassionate
NHC

1. Established Employee
Forum to recommend
policy areas and content

Establish NHC
Employee Forum

Participative management
processes

2008/09- 2010/11

2. Regular staff meetings
convened between
employees/management

Facilitate Employee
Forum meetings

Effective and regular
information sharing
processes

2008/09- 2010/11

3. Employee satisfaction
suggestion box

Facilitate placement of
employee suggestion box

Effective communication
between management
and all employees

2008/09- 2010/11

r) Ongoing capacity
building of the NHC

1. Conducted skills audit
and individual employees'
development plans

Facilitate skilling
of employees

Skills audit and Workplace
Skills Plans

2008/09 - 2010/11

s) Skills audit

Skills audit within
the sector I organisations

Skills transfer workshops
and programmes attended

Workplace Skills
Development Programme

2008/09

t) Establishment
of the resource

Well-resourced
Resources Centre for
the Heritage Sector

Improved research on
heritage 1ssues

An operational resource
centre

2008/09- 2010/11

The Employee Forum was officially
launched on 1 August 2008. It has to
date met twice and provided issues to
be looked at by management.
Annual calendar for 2009/2010
completed and Forum monthly meetings
taking place as planned
The NHC has established a middle
management body.
Plans are in place to have the body
meeting every month immediately after
Management Executive Committee
meetings during 2009/2010
To be established in September 2009

During March I April 2009 employees
submitted their development plans.
Plans are being used to complete the
WSP by end June 2009
Taken over by DAC and NHC supports.
NHC is awaiting report on the audit in
order to implement according to findings.
The Resource Centre was established in
May 2008 and is fully operational.
Installation of library and archival
systems is done

4.2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

4.2. 1

This report, informed by the Constitutive Act i.e the National Heritage
Council Act, 1999 (Act No. 11 of 1999) (the Act}, the Cultural Institutions
Act, 1998 (Act 119 of 1998}, the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act
no. 1 of 1999) (PFMA}, as amended, and the dictates of the King I and II
Reports , addresses the conformance of the National Heritage Council (NHC)
to the relevant statutory and regulatory imperatives. The NHC is classified
as a Schedule 3 Public Entity which by law is required to prepare and submit
Annual Financial Statements which incorporate a corporate governance
report.
The Council Members (Councillors) and Senior Management of the NHC
endorse the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct contained in the King
I and II Reports on Corporate Governance and the Protocol on Corporate
Governance in the Public Sector 2002. By supporting the Code the Councillors
have recognised the need to conduct the NHC's affairs with integrity and in
accordance with generally accepted corporate practices.

4.2.1
4.2.1.1

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
APPOINTMENT AND COMPOSITION OF THE COUNC
The Minister of Arts and Culture and the MECs responsible for Arts and
Culture at provincial levels are charged with the appointment of members
in terms of section 5 (1) (a) and (b) of the NHC Act respectively. Acting in
terms of Section 5(1 )(a), the Minister appointed seven (7) members of the
public to serve in the Council. Of the nine (9) MECs, only five (Gauteng,
Eastern Cape, Western Cape, Free State and North West) had appointed
representatives, whereas the remaining four( Kwa·Zulu Natal, Limpopo,
Northern Cape and Mpumalanga) had not made the required appointments
during the year under review.

OI
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The Council plays a supervisory role to the executive by ensuring conformity
with the strategic objectives or plans, monitoring of operational performance
and management, determination of policy and processes to ensure the
integrity of Council's risk management and internal control systems. It is
the highest decision-making body insofar as approval of policies, annual
budget, strategy plan and appointment of CEO are concerned. The role
of the Chairperson of the Council in conjunction with the Council is to
determine the NHC 's strategic direction and to ensure that governing policies
are formulated while the Chief Executive Officer has been delegated the
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the affairs of the Council
in terms of Section 11 (1 )(a)(i) of the NHC Act. The Chief Executive Officer
has assumed responsibility for the effective management of the NHC and
the implementation of the strategy, policy and Council directives.

4.2.1.
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Section 9 of the NHC Act makes provision for the NHC to reimburse
Councillors for expenses incurred for services performed and also to pay
honoraria only to Councillors who are not in the full-time employment of the
state. Payments of honoraria and travel claims for Councillors who attended
Council meetings have been disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements for
the period ended 31 March 2009, for accounting purposes.

4.3
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In terms of Section 8 of the NHC Act, the Council has a discretion to establish
committees to assist it in the performance of its functions and, in addition
to any members, it may appoint to such committees persons whom the
Council considers competent or possess specific skills and expertise. Acting
in terms thereof, the Council established the following Committees:
Management Executive Committee
Audit Committee
Heritage Committee
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
International Relations Committee

4.3.1
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The NHC has an Audit Committee which consists of three (3) members, these
being the Chairperson, who is a non-executive member of the Council, two
(2) independent non-executives, one of whom is a Chartered Accountant,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary.
The overall objective of the committee is to assist the Council of the NHC
in ensuring that management has created and maintained effective risk
management, an effective internal control environment in the organisation
and that management demonstrates the necessary respect of the internal
control and governance structures for the achievement of the objectives of
the organisation as well as management of risks to an acceptable level.
The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year but may meet more
frequently when necessary. The Committee has adopted the Audit Charter
and its Terms of Reference, which have been formally adopted by the
Council.

1.3.2

NT' RNAL AUD T FUNC ON
Len Konar and Associates rendered the internal audit services during the
year under review. In line with the requirements of the PFMA and good
corporate governance, internal audit provided the Audit Committee and
Management with assurance on the appropriateness and effectivene ss of
internal controls in place. The internal audit function provided the NHC with
independent, objective appraisal and evaluation of risk and management
thereof, evaluation of internal processes and control systems, governance
processes, as well as identificati on of corrective action and suggested
enhancements to controls and processes.

4.4
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Unit, Universities, NGOs, private organizations and individuals. The NHC
interacts with these organizations as part of the research process.

, S

The Heritage Unit of the NHC is the hub of the core business where all
programmes are conceptualised and implemented to fulfil the mandate .
4.4.1.2

4.4.1

PROV'DI POLICY ADV CE TO
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One of the strategic thrusts of the NHC is to provide policy advice to the
Minister of Arts and Culture . In the financial year 2008 2009 , the NHC
initiated the development of three policy frameworks .
4.4. 1.

POLCY ~="R.ANEWOR~ ON RE ATRIM Or. 0 HER. T.cl.GE RESOURC S
The NHC completed the first phase of developing a policy framework to
provide clear policy guidelines on repatriation , restitution and return
of heritage resources such as heritage objects , artefacts, historical
collections, fine art , documentary heritage, digitized material and human
rema ins. The NHC has since embarked on consultative sessions including
a successful national conference, in March 2008, for the development of
policy on repatriation of heritage resources . The resolutions , including the
recommendations from these consu ltative forums , have been incorporated
in the policy framework .
Consultations and several case studies detailed different approaches and
experiences by organizations such as the National Prosecution Authority
(NPA), Freedom Park , Ifa Lethu , Department of Defence, Department of Arts
and Culture, National Archives , South African Heritage Resources Agency
(SAHRA), Interpol, South African Pol ice Services (SAPS) Endangered Species

POL1CY FRAMEWORK ON HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT
In April 2009, the NHC convened a meeting of experts and stakeholders
to discuss issues of policy on heritage conservation and development.
The primary objective and focus of discussions centred on addressing
the prevalent tensions between heritage conservation and development.
The discussions covered a range of issues such as spatial planning,
infrastructure development, Indigenous Knowledge Systems (IKS) and land
use, including land management, tourism and economic development,
in relation to compliance to policy requirements for the conservation of
heritage resources. A set of recommendations and policy proposals has been
consolidated. This information is now being used in developing policy on
heritage conservation and development.

Four strategic thrusts drive the programmes initiated and implemented by
the NHC centre:
• providing policy advice to the Minister of Arts and Culture ;
• linking heritage and nation -building ;
• positioning the Heritage Sector as a significant contributor to socioeconomic development; and
public awareness , education and stakeholder relations.

4.4.1.3

POLICY ON ACCESS TO HERITAGE INSTITUTIONS AND INTRODUCTION
OF HERITAGE LEVY
This policy area is premised on the issue of public access by South Africans to
heritage institutions (including sites and institutions of cultural significance)
with particular focus on price differentials for local and international
markets. It has been a recurring challenge that South Africans are unable to
access heritage institutions as a result of several factors , but particularly
the exorbitant entrance fees charged in certain areas. Preliminary research
has revealed that the focus of the policy framework should not be limited
to the issue of access fees to heritage institutions but should encompass
all factors such as language , technology and physical access by disabled /
physically challenged persons. Public opinion and consultation were sought
for the policy development process.

4.4.2
4.4.2.1

HERITAGE IN NATION BUILDING
UBUNTU IN NATION BUILDI>,jG
The national campaign on Ubuntu in nation building is an annual strategic
programme emanating from the mandate of the NHC, of "integrating living
heritage with the functions and activities of the Council and all other heritage
authorities and institutions at national, provincial and local levels". The
NHC has identified a need for the conceptualization and implementation
of Ubuntu in a simplified practical manner. Through this campaign a large
section of our society can relate to the positive values of Ubuntu and express
them day-to-day to address societal issues and challenges. The most critical
elements of the programme are advocacy and promulgation of the value
system of the Ubuntu philosophy as pivotal to nation building , through a
sustainable public campaign and the integration of Ubuntu as part of public
policy.
In the financial year, the NHC initiated and implemented the following
activities as part of revival of the values of Ubuntu in society:

4.4.2

LAUNCH O• TH"' C \MPA.IGI'< ON UBUNTU N N.'\ ION BU LDING
The Campaign on Ubuntu in Nation Building was launched officially on the
28th August 2008, at the Walter Sisulu Freedom Square (Kliptown), the
historical site of the signing and adoption of the Freedom Charter. Key
objectives were to:
• Promote and advocate the Ubuntu campaign in society;
Mobilize public support for the Ubuntu campa1gn; and
Gather public understanding and opinion about the Ubuntu campaign.
Among the speakers were representatives of the South African Council
of Churches, Moral Regeneration Movement, CRL Commission, Youth
Commission, Community Leaders from Kliptown and guest speakers Ms
Gxowa (MP Gauteng Provincial Legislature) and Prof Muxe Nkondo.

Offenders at "(-Max" prison in Pretoria share their stories at the
Ubuntu symposium

4.4.2 1 UE.'.UNTU IMBIZO AND l\WARDS CEREMONY SEP EMPER 2008
In September 2008, Ubuntu lmbizo and Awards Ceremonies were organised
in Limpopo Provmce, Musina Municipality and Mapungubwe National Park.
The campaign was successful because of the partnership with the Limpopo
Provincial Government represented by the Office of the Premier, Department
of Arts and Culture and Musina Local Municipality. The public was engaged
on Ubuntu in an lmbizo or Pitso (consultative forum to gather public opinion
and understanding) . Former President Fidel Castro of Cuba was presented
with the Ubuntu Award in recognition of his contribution to humanity. This
followed the presentation of the award in the preceding years to Dr Nelson
Mandela in 2006 (first recipient) and Dr Kenneth Kaunda in 2007 (second
recipient) .

Presentation of the Ubuntu Award by CEO of NHC in Cuba
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On the 20th November 2008, the NHC and the Correctional Services
Department hosted a sympos1um m Pretona on Correctional Serv1ces and
Ubuntu. Based on the mteraction between the NHC and Correctional Services
sector on areas of mutual mterest, the symposium focused on the mtegrat10n
of heritage issues such as the posit1ve values of Ubuntu in correctional
services programmes such as crime prevention, rehabilitation, restorative
justiCe, moral regeneration and wellness mit1at1ves. The symposium was
structured to provide for dialogue and exchange of information.

Offenders take a light moment to show their musical talents.
The prison warders and the NHC CEO joined in the festivities at
the symposium

4.4. '3

POSITIO lNG TI-lE HE~ITAGE SECTOR AS SIGN FICANT CONTRIBUTOR
TO SOCIO ECO OM C DEVELOPMENT

4.4.3.1 THE NATIO AL LIBERATIO HERITAGE ROvTE
The NHC initiated the development of the Nat10nal Liberation Heritage
Route (LHR) for the preservallon and promotion of the legacy of the
hberat10n expenence : narrative and soc1al memory assoc1ated with the
history of the struggle for freedom . The development of the LHR stems
from a Southern African sponsored UNESCO resolution in 2005 that adopted
"Roads to mdependence : Afncan L1berat1on Hentage" . Key to the objectives
of the LHR IS Identification, documentation , development , research
and conservat10n of places, events and role players associated with the
liberation struggle .
The first phase of the LHR has been piloted m the Eastern Cape and research
conducted m different d1stnct mumc1palit1es . Reports of preliminary findings
from the Chm Ham District Mumc1pality, Amathole District Municipality
and Nelson Mandela Metropolitan of the Eastern Cape Province have been
produced . Similar research initiatives are bemg pursued in Gauteng, North
West, Free State, Mpumalanga and KwaZuluNatal. Although the LHR is a
nallonal project 1t has direct transnational boundary implications to the
SADC reg1on .

Adv. 5 Mancotywa (CEO of NHC) , Mr Thabang Makwetla (Former
Premier of Mpumalanga) , Mr Gwede Mantashe (Secretary General
of the ANC) , Councillor of Chris Hani Municipality, Cllr Sigabi
(Executive Mayor of Chris Hani Municipality) at the launch of the
Liberation Heritage Route in the Eastern Cape Province.

Several consultative sessions, including a launch and a national and provincial
summit on the LHR , took place . On the 2.5th and 26th February 2009, the NHC
successfully hosted the National Summit on the LHR project. The primary
objective was a dialogue on the development of a national plan of action in
which the different organizations could be involved in the development of
the multifaceted LHR project. A comprehensive draft report with resolutions
has been produced and is in circulation . The summit coincided with the fifth
anniversary of the NHC. The Eastern Cape Provincial Summit on the LHR took
place on 23rd March 2009 . It was organized by the Eastern Cape Provincial
Department of Arts and Culture .

The launch of the National Liberation Heritage Route in Co{imvaba on the
15th anniversary of Chris Hani 's assassination .

4.4.3.2: TENTATIVE

LIS~ING

OF THE LIBERATION HER TAGE ROUTE

An importan t facet of the development of the LHR entails the
inscription
of the route on the UNESCO World Heritage List of Sites of Universa
l Value.
A draft of the LHR project submitted to the South African World
Heritage
Committee was presented alongside other tentative sites for enlistme
nt at
the UNESCO World Heritage Committee meeting in June 2009.

4.4.3.j bU NESS ASE ON I
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An integral part in the development of the LHR is the cost implied
in its
development and sustamable management. In this regard, a scientific
study
for the development of a business case has been commissioned
to establish
the financial investment required for its development. The business
case
with projecte d costs has now been completed. The scope of
the business
case covers the following phases:
• Phase 1: Route concept, research and initial development planning
;
• Phase 2: Development of initial business plan · route and product
development plan; and
• Phase 3: Final business plan with clear cost projections and
implementation plan.
The draft business case document will be used for resource mobiliza
tion and
fund raising.

4.4.3..,
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Since 2006 the NHC has been engaged in a strategic partnership
to host the
SATMA Awards, which seek to safeguard our intangible cultural
heritage by
promoting tradition al African music. The awards, which recognis
e emerging
artists and groups not yet recognized, were successfully hosted
at the
Durban International Convention Centre under the theme 'Unity
through
Music, Languages and Culture' . Among importan t guests were
the Premier
of KZN Province, Mr Sbu Ndebele, President Jacob Zuma and
Ms llyasah
Shabaaz the daughter of Malcolm X.

This project is sponsored by the National Lotteries Distribu tion
Trust Fund
(NLTDF).

Centre : Ms Jlyasah Shabaaz , daughte r of Malcolm X
Bottom: A winner proudly raising her SATMA
Far right: Setswana cultural dancers at the SATMA's street parade
in Durban a day before the awards ceremon y

4.4.4

PUBLIC AWARENESS, EDUCATION AND STAI<EHOLDER RELATIONS

4.4.4.1 YOUTH CULTURAL EXCI-<ANGE PROGRAMME: HERITAGE AND
GE PROJECT
)L'S OUTREACH AN!
r
In 2008, the NHC in partnership with the KARA Heritage Institution and
South Afncan Hentage Resources Agency (SAHRA) embarked on a hentage
education outreach programme to integrate heritage conservation
and management into schools and the education system. A substantial
component of the programme entails the involvement of schools in different
provinces in competitive research initiatives. Participant schools presented
their projects for adjudication at an event in Mpumalanga (October 2008)
where the best proJect was announced. Audio visual resource materials
have been produced and are being dissemmated.

Mai'l A learner interviewed by a television crew at a heritage
school competition at the NHC.
Top left· Learners from Free State receiving the certificates at
the heritaqe schools competition in Mpumalanga.
Bottom left : Learners from five provinces (Limpopo .
Mpumalanga, North West. Gauteng and Free State) 1n the schools '
out1 each pro(/ramme

4.4.4 2 EDUC.
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In March 2009, the NHC hosted a successful education symposium to engage
stakeholders, including the Department of Education, in a discussion on
the issue of integrating heritage into the schools' syllabus. Subjects such
as history, arts and culture, values in education, life orientation and skills
were noted as areas for the integration of issues of heritage. Over and
above, there has been an overwhelming support to have heritage taught
as a subject without necessarily infusing it into existing subjects. In this
regard, follow-up meetings have been taking place with the Department
of Education, which is keen to establish a partnership with the NHC. The
symposium was well attended and there was positive feedback from the
participants. A report, which includes presentations of speakers and a set of
resolutions, has been produced.

A learner is confidently expressing her view at the education
symposium on heritage

4.4.4.
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The project on the Intellectua l Making of Sol. T. Plaatje officially commenced
on May 18, 2008 , followmg the signing of the contract by the NHC and the
Human Science Research Council (HSRC ). The research project, based on
the life and work of Solomon Thekiso Plaatje, is part of a larger initiative to
yield a book and an exhibition . The exhibition was funded by the Northern
Cape ProvinCial Government (NCPG ) and the book by the NHC. The NCPG and
NHC undertook to collaborate on this work, each focusing on its prescribed
deliverable . During the heritage month of September 2008 an exhibition on
the life and works of Sol Plaatjie was opened in Kimberly as a key heritage
activity in the Northern Cape Province .

4.4.4.

4.5

UNDED PROJECTS
The Funding Unit has a clear objective from the mandate of the NHC.
Currently, its main occupation is distribut ing funds to the organisations who
have submitted their applications and been approved. Targets are set for
each year and focus areas determine d. Unlike in the past financial year,
specific areas pre-determined for strategic focus covered xenophobia ,
women and heritage, heritage and disabled people {physically challenged
people) , heritage and HIV/AIDS, the heritage of the Khoi-San people, youth
and heritage, education and heritage.
Several projects benefited from the funds for the financial year :

The literature review and analysis phase have been completed , while other
aspects of research are ongoing .

Item

Project Name

r~

1

Lwandle Migrant Labour Museum

845 738

2

Africa Meets Africa

978 747

3

University of the Western Cape

980 000

4

Internation al Library of African Music

154 904

5

lfa Lethu

84 048

E 2ND VOLUI'I

Or .,.HL EARLY

R CAN IN EL ECTl.J.
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The NHC has completed the publication on the first volume of the Early
African Intellectuals. The second volume, a continuation of the first , has
commenced with the official signing of the contract with the HSRC. It
focuses on individuals whose public activities and works gained prominence
in the early 20th century and include Albert Nzula , Magema Fuze , Reverend
James Mata Dwane, Noni Jabavu and Charlotte Maxeke . The study also
covers African women (Unsung Heroines ) who contributed intellectua lly to
the development and empowerment of many South Africans .

Amount
Allocated

6

Neotha Arts and Culture

500 000

7

Reaching Out/Green Vision Foundation

664 557

8

Arts & Teaching Initiatives

405 000

9

Albany Museum

327 248

10

llksa Trust

600 000

11

Lovedale Public FET College

600 000

12

Central University of the Free State

186 903

13

The Marimba Education Foundation

550 000

14

The South End Museum Trust

418 600

15

Absa KKNK

650 000

Impact of funded projects
Africa Meets Africa received initial funding for a project focusing on the mathematical
interpretation of Ndebele Huts and its integration into school lessons. This project has
grown and was earmarked to be rolled-out nationally by the Department of Education.
It is encouraging to note that a project such as Africa Meets Africa has not only grown
nationally, but carries with it elements of job creation and sustainability. Because of
its growth it attracted additional funding from the corporate sector.

A monument at the centre of the Pretoria Zoo

The Green Vision Foundation looked at digitising South African declared heritage sites
to share with schools Identified by the Department of Education in partnership with
the NHC in its schools and heritage programme.

4.6

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS

Branding
The brand collateral of the NHC was refreshed and applied throughou t
the platforms created at events, exhibitions , meetings, conferences and
summits, and through below-the- line products.

The unit seeks to create awareness for the preservation and promotion
of all heritages in South Africa. It also plays a central role in supporting
programmes targeting the external public.

Stakehold er relations

Med':a relations

Communication managers and directors of all the national government
heritage institutions were engaged (with support from their CEOs and
Directors) to form a Heritage Communications Forum to collaborat e in
integrated communications and marketing initiatives for the benefit of the
heritage sector. This stakeholder engagement continues to realise better
results annually.

Strategic heritage programmes, the Chief Executive Officer and managers
of units enjoyed a sustained positive exposure in national broadcast and
print media. To the fullest possible extent, opportunities were seized to
place critical, thought-provoking opinions of the NHC in various national
print media. Published opinions from the CEO and debates on talk shows
increased awareness of matters of heritage importance.

Publications

In 2008, efforts to create working partnerships with the media were
concentrated on the Limpopo Province . A group of reporters from various
broadcasters and publications were introduced to heritage (especially the
Ubuntu project held in Limpopo in September 2008) and what it entails.
A networking session hosted the media in Gauteng where the NHC was
promoted as part of the fifth anniversary celebrations.

Adve,t1s1ng
Various advertising campaigns undertaken to profile the NHC , create
awareness of the programmes and conferences and promote heritage in the
country, were designed to reach the target audience of the heritage sector
and beyond .
The fifth anniversary of the NHC in February brought advertising in 2008 to
a peak. Achievements of the organisation in the last five years were profiled
nationally.

Print and online publications about projects were produced for distributio n
to the target audience. A corporate audio visual of the NHC was a popular
communication tool , especially at major events. The website was
reconstructed to align it to the current communic ation needs and was made
more informative and interactive .
4. 7

HUMAN RESOURCES
Policies and procedur es
The NHC has entrenched policies and procedures that comply with legislative
imperatives and fair employme nt practices and facilitate a participato ry
environment within the organization. Notable areas are in:
o Performance management
o HR and payroll
o Business culture
o Employee wellness and safety initiatives
o Training and developments
These policy and procedure areas are reviewed from time to time to improve
employment conditions and employees' well-being

Attrition

Employee profile
The NHC has im proved its initiative and commitment to diversify its employees' profile
in the workplace by accelerating recruitment of women .

Category

Date of Attrition Gender Race

Company Secretary

31 / 8/ 2008

Male

Black

Chief Financial Officer

30 / 09/2008

Female

Black

Funding Coordinator

28 / 11/2008

Female

Black

Current Employee profile
Category

Gender

Chief Executive Officer

Male

Chief Financial Officer

Female' previously female

Human Resources Manager

Male

Company Secretary

Female' previously male

Funding Manager

Female

Heritage Manager

Male

Marketing Manager

Male

Senior Administration Officer
(Assistant to Company Secretary)

Female

Policy Research Specialist

Female

Coordinator·Advocacy and Education

Male

Heritage Programmes Coordinator

Female

Finance Officer

Male

Funding Coordinator

Male' previously female

SCM Officer I Accountant

Female

Personal Assistant to CEO

Female

Receptionist

Female

Driver

Male

Housekeeper

Female

Train ng nd D• veloonen
To susta in the NHC's high performance, it continued to invest in business related
and hentage management training and development for employees . Training and
development concentrated on :
Directors ' role m risk and strategy
Transport management
Effective company secretaries seminar
Maximizmg effectiveness for executive PAs
Events management
Project management
Better busmess writing
Mastering minutes and meetings protocol

Emp 1oyee Fo

m

Participative management is the cornerstone of all activities of an organization . In its
commitment to the philosophy, the NHC introduced and launched an Employee Forum
during July 2008 . The forum consists of non ·senior managers and is responsible for
providing input in areas of policies, business processes and general well being in the
workplace . The forum has since been instrumental in improving the running of the
organization and its wellness .

NB : employees marked with asterisks left the organization during the year in review.
The positions were subsequently filled.

Reason
Better
prospects
Better
prospects
Better
prospects
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THE YEAR ENDFD 31 MARCH 2009
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We are pleased to present our report for the
financial year ended 31 March 2009.

Aud · Comm ittee Me be

and ttenda, ce

The National Heritage Council has an audit
committee structure which operates in
terms on the Council's approved Audit Comm
ittee Charter.
The Audit Committee consists of the members
listed hereunder and meets at least two
(2) times per annum as per the approved Audit
Committee Charter. During the current
year six (6) audit committee meetings were
held and attended as follows:
Name of Member
Mr. J Mdeni (Chairperson)
Mr. DT Ntuli
Ms HN Jaxa

Number of meeti ngs attend ed
6
6
4

The quali ty of in year moni toring and quar
terly repo rts subm itted in
terms of the PFMA
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the
conte nt and qualit y of quart erly reports
prepared and issued by the Accounting Office
r of the Council during the year under
review.

Evaluation of Financial State ment s
The Audit Committee has:
Reviewed and discussed the audite d annua
l financial statem ents to be
included in the annual repor t with the AGSA
and Management;
Reviewed the AGSA's management letter and
management's
response theret o; and
Reviewed significant adjustments resulting
from the audit.

The Audit Committee reports that it has compl
ied with its responsibilities arising from
sect1on 51 (1) (a) (ii), 76 (4) (d), and 77 of the
PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.8

The Audit Committee concurs and accep
ts the AGSA's conclusions on the annua
l
financial statements, and is of the opinion
that the audite d financial annual financial
statements be accepted and read togeth er
with the repor t of the AGSA.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has
adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has
regulated its affairs in compliance with
this charter and has discharged all its respo
nsibilities as contained therein.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
intern al audit functi on is opera ting
effect ively and that it has addressed the risks
pertin ent to the Council's in its audit

The effectiVeness of nter al co trol

We have met with the auditors, and there are
no unresolved issues.

Audit Comr ittee Responsibility

Intern al Audit

Audit or General of South Africa
The system of control is designed to provide
cost effect ive assurance are safeguarded
and liabilit ies and working capital are efficie
ntly managed. In line with the PFMA
and the King II Report Corporate Governance
requirements, Internal Audit provides
the Audit Committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are
appropriate and effect ive. Th1s is achieved by
means of the risk management process,
as well as the identifications of corrective action
s and suggested enhancements to the
controls and processes. From the various report
s of the Internal Auditors, the Audit
Report on the Annual Financial Statements,
and management letter of the AuditorGeneral of South Africa (AGSA), it was noted
that no matters were reported that
indicate any material deficiencies in the system
of internal control or any deviations
there from. Accordingly, we can report that
the system of internal control was
effect ive for the year under review.

Mr. J Mden i
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date 23 September 2009
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1.

ial statements of the National
I have audite d the accompanying financ
ent of financial position as at
Heritage Council which comprise the statem
performance, the statement of
31 March 2009, the statem ent of financial
ent for the year then ended,
changes in net assets and the cash flow statem
policies and other explanatory
and a summary of signif icant accounting
07.
1
notes as set out on pages 6 7 to

4.

5.

for the financial
The accounting authority's responsibility
statements
2.

for the preparation and fair
The accounting autho rity is responsible
in accordance with the basis
presentation of these financ ial statem ents
ry, set out in note 1 to
Treasu
of accounting deter mined by the National
by the Public Finance
ed
requir
er
mann
the financial statem ents and in the
for such internal
and
)
(PFMA
1999)
of
1
No.
Management Act, 1999 (Act
ines is necessary to enable
control as the accounting autho rity determ
that are free from material
the prepa ration of financial statements
misstatement, wheth er due to fraud or error.

The Auditor-General's responsibility
3.

itution of the Republic of South
As required by section 188 of the Const
Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25
Public
the
of
4
n
sectio
Africa, 1996 read with
s an opinion on these financial
of 2004) (PAA), my respo nsibili ty is to expres
statements based on my audit.

6.

International Standards on
I conducted my audit in accordance with the
2008, issued in Government
Auditing read with General Notice 616 of
rds require that I comply
Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standa
m the audit to obtain
perfor
and
with ethical requirements and plan
ents are free from
statem
ial
financ
the
er
wheth
reasonable assurance about
t.
material misstatemen
obtain audit evidence about
An audit involves performing procedures to
statements. The procedures
ial
the amounts and disclosures in the financ
including the assessment of
ent,
judgem
selected depend on the auditor's
ial statements, whether due
financ
the
of
t
temen
the risks of material missta
ments, the auditor considers
to fraud or error. In making those risk assess
ration and fair presentation
internal control relevant to the entity's prepa
audit procedures that are
design
of the financial statements in order to
purpose of expressing an
the
for
not
but
s,
appropriate in the circumstance
al control. An audit also
intern
's
entity
the
of
s
opinion on the effectivenes
nting policies used and the
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accou
by management, as well as
reasonableness of accounting estimates made
ial statements.
evaluating the overall presentation of the nnanc
ed is sufficient and appropriate
1believe that the aud1t evidence I have obtain
to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opiniol'
7.

In my opinion the financial statements
present fairly, in all mate rial
respects, the financial position of the Natio
nal Heritage Council as at 31
March 2009 and its financial performanc
e and its cash flows for the year
then ended , in accordance with the basis
of accounting determined by the
National Treasury, set out in note 1.1 to
the financial statements and in the
manner required by the PFMA .

Emphas'1s o• matt er
Without qualifying my opinion , I draw atten
tion to the following matte rs :

Basis of accounting
8.

The public entity 's policy is to prepare financ
ial statements on the basis of
accounting determined by NatiOnal Treas
ury, as set out in accounting policy
note 1.1.

Othe r matte1 s
Witho ut qualifying my opinion , I draw atten
tion to the follow ing matte rs
that relate to my responsibilities in the
audit of the financial statements:

Gove rnan ce f· amewol"'~
9.

The governance principles that impac t the
audito r's opinion on the financial
statements are related to the responsibili
ties and practices exercised by the
accounting autho rity and executive mana
gement and are reflected in the
key governance responsibilities addressed
below.

10.

The PFMA tasks the accounting autho rity
with a number of responsibilities
concerning financial and risk management
and intern al contr ol. Fundamental
to achieving this is the imple menta tion
of key governance responsibilities ,
which I have assessed as follows:

Othe r key gover na tee responsibilities

Matter

No.

y

N

provi ded in a tim ely manner
Clear trail of supportin g documen tation that is easily available and
delays or the availability of requested information.
No significant difficultie s were experienced during the audit concerning
1.

"'

Quality of financial statemen ts and related management informa tion
resulting from the audit.
The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments
2.

"'

3.

Timeline ss of financial statemen ts and management inf ormation
legislated deadlines [section 55 of the PFMA].
The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the
4.
Availabil ity of key officials during audit
5.

"'

of the auditor's report.
The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling

Key officials were available throughout the audit process.

"'
"'

control and governance practices
Develop ment and compliance with risk management , effective internal

6.

Audit committe e
financial year.
The public entity had an audit committe e in operation throughout the
of reference.
The audit committe e operates in accordance with approved, written terms
as set out in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury
The audit committe e substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year,

"'
"'
"'

Regulation 27.1. 8.
7.

Internal audit
t the financial year.
The pu blic entity had an internal audit function in operation throughou

"'

8.

the year, as set out in Treasury Regulation 27.2.
The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for
of internal control in respect of financial and risk
There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation

"'
"'
"'

9.

management.
of internal control in respect of compliance with apThere are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation

"'

plan.
The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit

plicab le laws and regulations.

No.

Matt er

y

N

10.

The information systems were appropria
te to facili tate the preparation of the
financial statements.
11.
A risk assessment was conducted on
a regular basis and a risk manageme
nt strategy, which includes a fraud
is documented and used as set out in
prev entio n plan,
Treasury Regulation 27.2.
12.
Delegations of responsibility are in place
, as set out in section 56 of the PFMA
.
Follow-up of audit findings
13.
The prior year audit findings have been
substantially addressed.
Issues relating to the r epor t i ng of
perfo rmance infor mati on
14.
The information systems were appropria
te to facili tate the preparation of a
performance repo rt that is accurate
complete.
and
15.

Adequate control processes and proce
dures are designed and implemented
to ensure the accuracy and completen
reported performance information.
ess of

16.

A strategic plan was prepared and appro
ved for the financial year under revie
w for purposes of mon itorin g the perfo
in relation to the budget and delivery
rman ce
by the National Heritage Council again
st
its mandate, pred eterm ined objec
outputs, indicators and targets Treas
tives ,
ury Regulation 30.1.
There is a functioning performance
management system and performan
ce bonuses are only paid after prop
approval by those charged with gove
er assessment and
rnance.

17.

11 .

"'
"'

"'
"'
"'
"'
"'
"'

Due to a system failure , the general
ledger and trial balance displayed mate
rial differences. The National Herit
time to recapture the 2008-09 trans
age Council requested
actions. As a result mate rial changes
were made to the financial statement
s.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

S
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL REGULATORY REQUIREMENT
ation
inform
mance
perfor
Repor t on
on pages 12 to 31
I have reviewed the performance informa tion as set out
perfor mance
The accou nting autho rity's respon sibility for the
inform ation
as required by
The accounting authori ty has additio nal responsibilities
and audited
report
annual
the
that
ensure
to
PFMA
the
of
section 55(2)(a)
rmined
predete
against
ance
perform
the
present
fairly
nts
financial stateme
objectives of the public entity.
The Audito r-Gene ral's respon sibility
13 of the PAA read
I conducted my engagement in accordance with section
No. 31057
Gazette
ment
Govern
in
issued
2008,
of
with General Notice 616
of 15 May 2008.
ing procedures
In terms of the foregoing my engagement included perform
e about the
evidenc
of an audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate
procedures.
and
es
process
,
performance informa tion and related systems
ent.
judgem
's
auditor
The procedures selected depend on the
and appropriate to
I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient
below.
d
reporte
findings
the
for
provide a basis
Finding s on perfor mance inform ation
Repor ted perfor mance inform ation not releva nt
the minister
The following targets with regard to the objectives: provide
l building
nationa
and
ation
mobilis
e
resourc
and
with policy advice, funding
not:
were
programme,
d level of
• specific in clearly identify ing the nature and the require
performance;
and
• measurable in identify ing the required performance;
for delivery.
e
deadlin
or
period
• time bound in specifying the time

18.

en y reporte d per fornan ce inform ation
neon
needs analysis )
The objective: funding and resource mobilisation (funding
reported per
those
with
nt
consiste
included in the annual report is not
plan.
c
strategi
the
and
programme in the annual plan

19.

perform ance
Reasons for varianc es betwee n planne d and actual
no inr t ded in he annrra epo· t
of reported
Variances between the planned and the actual performance
(funding
tion
mobilisa
resource
and
funding
performance information for the
for
tions
explana
e
adequat
by
d
supporte
not
were
e
needs analysis) objectiv
report.
annual
the
the variances in

20.

\P 1 REC ATIO
Council
The assistance rendered by the staff of the National Heritage
ted.
apprecia
y
during the audit is sincerel

Pretoria
23 September 2009

AUDITOR
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Accounting Aut 101 ty's f\espo1 s b I ties and Approval
The Council Members are required by the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act
no .1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsib
le for the
content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial
information
included in this report. It is the responsibility of the National Heritage
Council to
ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the National
Heritage Council as at the end of the financial year and the results of
its operations
and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are responsib
le for
report on the fair presentation of the financial statements .
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies
consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates
.
The Council Members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible
for the system
of internal financial control established by the National Heritage Council
and place
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment.
To enable the
Council Members to meet these responsibilities, the Council Members
set standards
for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a
cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within
a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of
duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk . These controls are monitored
throughout
the National Heritage Council and all employees are required to maintain
the highest
ethical standards in ensuring that the National Heritage Council's business
is conducted
in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The
focus of risk
management in the National Heritage Council is on identifying , assessing,
managing
and monitoring all known forms of risk across the National Heritage Council
. While
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated , the Council Members endeavou
r to minimise
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastruc ture, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour
are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constrain
ts .
The Council Members are of the opinion, based on the information and
explanations
given by Management , that the system of internal control provides
reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparati
on of the
financial statements . However, any system of internal financial control
can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute , assurance against material misstatem
ent or loss.

The Council Members have reviewed the National Heritage Council's cash
flow forecast
for the year to March 31, 2010 and, in the light of this review and the
current financial
position , they are satisfied that the National Heritage Council has access
to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The National Heritage Council is wholly depende nt on the Departm
ent of Arts and
Culture for continued funding of operations. The financial statemen
ts are prepared
on the basis that the National Heritage Council is a going concern
and that the
Department of Arts and Culture has neither the intention nor the need
to liquidate or
curtail materiall y the scale of the National Heritage Council.
The financial statements set out on pages 67 to 107, which have been
prepared on the
going concern basis, were approved by the accounting authority on 31
May 2009 and
were signed on its behalf by:

· ~ -Ms . N Madilonga
Chief Financial Officer

Adv. S Mancotywa
Chief Executive Officer
PRETORIA
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Notes

2009

2008

R' OOO

R'OOO

Assets
Curren t assets
Trade and other receiva bles

14

245

388

Prepayments and advanc es

15

60

66

Cash and cash equiva lents

16

18,629

16,804

18 ,934

17,2 58

Non-cu rrent assets
Property, plant and equipm ent

12

1,484

1, 577

13

150

33

Intangible assets

1, 634

1, 610

20, 568

18,868

Tota l Assets

Li ab ilities
Cu rre nt liabi li t ies
18

144

106

Finance lease obligat ion

20

3,118

3,643

Trade and other payabl es
s
Deferred income / Unspen t conditi onal grants and receipt

19

9,068

65

21

1,264

599

13 , 594

4 ,413

Accruals

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR -rHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARUi 2009
STATEMEN~

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Notes

2009

2008

R'OOO

R' OOO

343

487

Non-curr ent liabilities
Finance lease obligation

18

Deferred income/Unspent conditional grants and receipts

19

Total liabilities

65
343

552

13,937

4,965

6,631

13 ,903

Net assets
Accumulated surplus

17

AN2009CIAL STATEMENTS
FIN
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AN
MARCH
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
STATEMENT OF CHANGES I~ NET ASSETS

Opening balanc e as previo usly report ed
Adjustments
Balance at 1 April 2007

Accum ulated

Total net

surplus

assets

R' OOO

R' OOO

15,816

15, 816

(22)

(22)

15,794

15,794

(1,891)

(1,891)

Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year
Total change s
Balance at 1 April 2008

(1,891)

{1,891)

13,903

13,903

Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year
Total change s
Balanc e at 31 March 2009

(7,272)

(7,272)

(7,272)

{7,272)

6,631

6,631

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Notes

2009

2008

R'OOO

R' OOO

Income
Government grants

3

29,965

36,670

Other income

5

10

145

Amortised Government conditional grants

4

15,214

65

Interest received - investment

6

1,412

1,621

46,601

38 , 501

Total Revenue

Expenditure
Employee related costs

8

(8,531 )

(6,224)

Administrative expenses

7

(11 ,639)

(9,052)

Operating lease expenses

9

(434)

(434)

Depreciation

11

(534)

(458)

Finance costs

24

(71)

(74)

Amortisation

11

(26)

Other operating expenses

(3)

10

(32,638)

(24, 147)

(53,873)

(40 , 392 )

(7,272)

(1 ,891)

(7,272)

(1 ,891 )

Total Expendi ture
Deficit for the year

Attributable to:
Net Asset holders of the controlling entity

IAL STATEMENTS
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FI
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

45,124

36,073

(43, 990)

(36,766)

1'134

(693)

1,412

1,564

2,546

871

12

(472)

(629)

13

(143)

Notes

Cash flows from oper ating activ ities
Cash receipts from f under
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from (used in) operations

22

Interest income

Net cash from oper ating activ ities
Cash flows from inves ting activ ities
ment
Acquisition of property, plant and equip
Acquisition of other intan gible assets
Net cash from inves ting activ ities
Cash flows from finan cing activ ities
Finance lease payments
Net cash from inves ting activ ities
Total cash move ment for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
the end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents balances at

(615)

(629)

(106)

(370)

(106)

(370)

1,825

(128)

16,804

16,932

18,62 9

16,80 4

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
. 1

p, e·,er tation

J'

Fina:1c·a1 Stater ents

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the South African Statements
of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP
interpretations of such statements issued by the
) includ ing any
Accounting Practices Board, with the effecti ve
Standards of Generally Recognised Accou nting
Practices (GRAP) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board replacing the equiva
lent GAAP Statement as follows:
Standard of GRAP
GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2: Cash flow statements
GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accoun
ting estimates and errors
Standard of GRAP

Rep laced Statem ent of SA GAAP
AC 101: Presentation of financ ial statem ents
AC 118: Cash flow statem ents
AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in estima
tes and errors
Standard of GAAP

Currently the recognition and measurement princip
les in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do
not differ or result in mater ial differe nces in
disclosed in the financial statements. The implem
items presen ted and
entatio n of GRAP 1, 2 and 3 has resulte d in the
follow ing changes in the presen tation of the
financ ial statem ents:

AL STATEMENTS
CI
AN
FIN
AL
NU
AN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
nts (con tinue d)
1.1 Presentation of Fina ncia l Stat eme
Standar d of GRAP
Statement of financial perfo rman ce
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in net assets
Net assets
Surplus/ defic it
Accumulated surpl us/ defic it
Contributions from owners
Distributions to owners
Reporting date

Standard of GAAP
Income statement
Balance sheet
Statement of changes in equity
Equity
Profit/loss
Retained earnings
Share capital
Dividends
Balance sheet date

direc t method .
prepared only in accordance with the
The cash flow state ment can only be
ia l position such as :
separately on the state ment of the financ
Specific inform ation has been presented
;
actions , including taxes and transfers
Receivables from non ·exchange trans
Taxes and transfers payable; and
xchange transactions.
Trade and other payables from non·e
s on cash balances is required.
Amount and natur e of any restr iction

financial year.
tive for this
r standard 1s noth effec
b d
f the financial
·
b. t.
·
al u get repor mg
atton
mtern
and
local
the
o
that
tve
fact
Jec
affec t t eo
been imple ment ed due to the
· 1 t emen t s, non·disclosure w1ll not
·
Paragraphs 11 ·15 of GRAP 1 has not
nce the usefulness of the financta sta
·
Al t hough the mclus
ion of budget infor matio n woul d enha
statements.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ACCOLNT NG POLICIES
1.1 Preser tatior, o1 Fhanc'c~l Statements (continu ed)
All amounts have been presented 1n the currency of South African
Rand which is the functional currency of the National Heritage
Council.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period
.

2 Property. p1a11t and equipm ent
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipme nt is recognise
d as an asset when:

It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item wil l flow to the National Heritage Council ; and
The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs mcurred initially to acquire or construct an item
of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequ
ently to add to , replace part of ,
or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipme nt , the carrying
amount of the replaced part is
derecognised .

STATEMENTS
AL
CI
AN
FIN
AL
NU
AN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
tinue d)
1.2 Property, plan t and equi pme nt (con

and any impairment losses.
d at cost less accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equip ment are carrie
s·
categories are as follow
The estimated useful lives of the main assets
Average useful life
Item
Three years (33.33%)
Computer equip ment
Six years (16.67%)
Office equipment
Six years (16.67%)
Furniture and fitting s
the period of the lease
Lease term (five years) I amortisation over
Leasehold improvements
period-end.
each asset are reviewed at each financial
The residual value and the useful life of
ciated separately.
n to the total cost of the item shall be depre
ment with a cost that is significant in relatio
equip
and
plant
rty,
prope
of
item
an
of
Each part
er asset
it is included in the carrying amount of anoth
is recognised in surplus or defic it unless
The depreciation charge for each perio d
ognised. The gain or.
ed in surplus or deficit when the item is derec
of property, plant and equipment is includ
item
an
of
ition
cogn
if any, and the carrymg
de-re
ed,
the
proce
from
al
g
The gain or loss arisin
as the difference between the net dispos
rty, plant and equipment is determined
prope
of
item
an
of
ition
cogn
de-re
the
loss arising from
amount of the item.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ACCOU

1.3

lnt~

G POLC ES
~~

intangible assets. For all other intangible assets, amortisa tion
line baSIS over their useful life.

IS

provided on a straight

ets

An intangible asset is recognised when.
t IS probable that the expected future economiC benefits that
are
att.nbutab e to the asset wtll flow to the entity; and
The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are m1ttally recogmsed at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project
1s recogmsed
as an expense when 1t rs incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development 'or from the development
phase of an
internal project} is recognised when
It IS technically 'eas1ble to complete the asset so that 1t w1ll be avatlable
for use or ~ e;
There IS an mteotton to complete and use or sell 1t;
ere is an ability to use or se I it;
It wtll generate probable future economiC benefits;
There are ava1lab e techmca , finanoa and other resources to complete
the
development and to use or se , the asset; and
The expenditure attnt>utat>le to t e asse during its Cleve opment can
oe
measured reliably.
lntang1b e assets are earned at cost less any accumulated amortisat
ion and any
1mpairmen losses.
An 1ntang1ble asset IS regarded as having an maefimte useful
ltfe when, based on
all relevant factors, tnere is no foreseeat> e hmtt to t e period over w
1c the asset
1s expected to generate net cash innows. Amortl~tton rs not provraed
or these

The amortisatiOn period and the amortisat ion method for intangibl
e assets are
rev1ewed every period·end
Reassessmg the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful
life after 1t was
class1fied as mdefimte 1s an tndlCator that the asset may be 1mpa1red
. As a result, the
asset IS tested for 1mpa1rment and the remammg carrying amount is
amortised over
its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer
ltsts and items
similar m substance are not recogmsed as intangibl e assets.
Amortisa tion is provided to write down the intangibl e assets on a straight
line basis,
to their residual values as follows:
Ite m

Usefu l li f e

Computer software

Two years (50%)

-

~I nn• u11

ents

Classification
The "iational Heritage Council classifies financial assets and financial
liabilities into
the following categories:
loans and receivables; and
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(co ntin ued )
1.4 Fin anc ial ins tru me nts

e
financial instruments wer
purpose for which the
the
on
s
end
d
dep
sse
ion
sse
Classificat
ition. Classification is re-a
s place at init ial recogn
take
and
d
fair
urre
at
inc
as
ed/
ted
ain
obt
financial assets designa
ept for der ivat ives and
fair value
on an annual basis, exc
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becomes a par ty to the
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les are classified as loans
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osits relating to the provisio
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Other receivables consist
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are
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of premises. These receivab
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measured at fair value,
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e
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Trade payables are init ially
roxi
app
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,
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due
ch,
whi
t
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fair value.
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on hand and other short-te
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cash
are subject to
Cash and
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t
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an insignificant risk of cha
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at fair value.

1.5 Tax
Ta <expenses

(cA)
in terms of Section 10 (1)
ncil is exempt from taxation
The National Heritage Cou
(i) of the Income Tax Act.
and
1 6 Leases
s substantially all the risks
finance lease if it transfer
s
doe
it
if
e
leas
A lease is classified as a
ng
rati
d as an ope
ership. A lease is classifie
ip.
rewards incidental to own
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to
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at the risks and rewards
not transfer substantially
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1.6 Leases (con tinu ed)
F'nar1ce leases lessee
Finance
position
present
lessor is

leases are recognised as assets and
liabilities in the statement of finan
cial
at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lowe
r,
the
value of the minimum lease paym
ents. The corresponding liabi lity
to the
included in the statement of finan
cial position as a finance lease oblig
ation.

The discount rate used in calculating
the present value of the minimum lease
payments
is the interest rate impl icit in the
lease.

Irres pect ive of whe ther there is
any indic ation af impa irme nt ,
the Natio nal Herit age
Council also :
Tests intangible assets with an
inde finite useful life or intan gible
assets
not yet available for use for impa
irme nt annually by comparing its
carrying
amount with its recoverable amo
unt. This impa irme nt test is perfo
rmed
during the annual period and at the
same time ever y perio d .

If there is an indication that an
asset may be impa ired , the reco
verable amount is
estimated for the individual asse
t. If it is not possible to estim ate
the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
recoverable amo unt of the cash-gen
erating unit to
which the asset belongs is dete rmin
ed.

The lease payments are apportion
ed between the finance charge and
reduction of
the outstanding liabi lity. The finan
ce charge is allocated to each perio
d
during the
lease term so as to produce a cons
tant periodic rate on the remaining
balance of the
liabi lity.

The recoverable amount of an asse
t or a cash -gen erati ng unit is the
high er of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value
in use .

Ope rat ng leases

An impairment loss of assets carri
ed at cost less any accu mula ted
depr ecia tion or
amortisation is recognised imm edia
tely in surplus or defic it. Any impa
irme nt loss of a
re-valued asset is treated as a reva
luation decrease .

lessee

Operating lease payments are recog
nised as an expense on a straight
-line basis over
the lease term . The diffe renc e betw
een the amounts recognised as an
expense and
the cont ractu al payments are recog
nised as an operating lease asset.
This liabi lity is
not discounted.

7 lmpar· men t

01

asse· ·.

The National Heritage Council asses
ses at each statement of financial
position date
whe ther there is any indiCation that
an asset may be Impaired . If any
such
indication
exists, The National Heritage Coun
cil estimates the recoverable amo
unt of the asset.

An impairment loss is recognised for
cash-generating units if the recovera
ble amount of
the unit is less than the carrying amo
unt of the units . The impa irme nt
loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets of the unit in the follo
wing orde r:
Any entit y assesses at each repo
rting date whe ther there is any
indic ation
that an impairment loss recognise
d in prior periods of assets othe
r than
goodwill may no longer exist or may
have decreased . If any such indic
ation
exists, the recoverable amounts of
those assets are estim ated .
A reversal of an impa irme nt loss
of assets carri ed at lost less accu
mulated
depreciation or amortisation othe
r than good will is recognised imm
edia
tely
in surplus or defic it. Any reversal
of an impa irme nt loss of a re-valued
asse
t
is treated as a revaluation increase.
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1.8 Employee bene fits
Shor t-term empl oyee bene fits

(those payable within 12 months after the
The cost of short- term emplo yee benefits
leave and bonus), are recognised in the
service is rendered, such as paid vacation
are not discounted.
period in which the service is rendered and
ces is recognised as an expense as the
The expec ted cost of compensated absen
entitle ment or, in the case of non·
their
se
employees rende r services that increa
occurs .
accumulating absences, when the absence
nised as an expense when there is a legal
The expec ted cost of bonus payments is recog
nts as a result of past performance .
or const ructiv e obliga tion to make such payme

Defined contr ibutio n plans

yees by means of a defined contri bution
Pension contri bution s are provided for emplo
Libert y Life . The defined contri bution
provided fund extern ally admin istere d by
Funds Act , 1956 .
provid ent fund is governed by the Pension
benef it plans are charged as an expense
Payments to defined contri bution retire ment
as they fall due .

1 9 Accruals and conti ngen cies
Accruals are recognised when :
nt obligation as a result of a past
The National Heritage Council has a prese
event ;
embodying economic benefits will
It is probable that an outflo w of resources
be requir ed to settle the obliga tion ; and
tion .
A reliab le estim ate can be made of the obliga

of the expenditure expected to be
The amount of accruals is the present value
required to settle the obligation.
for settling a provision is expected to be
Where some or all of the expenditure required
shall be recognised when, and only
ent
ursem
reimbursed by another party, the reimb
ent will be received if the entity settles
when , it is virtua lly certain that reimbursem
treated as a separate asset. The amount
the obligation . The reimbursement shall be
exceed the amount of the accruals.
recognised for the reimbursement shall not
ting deficits.
Accruals are not recognised for future opera
the present obligation under the contract
If an entity has a contra ct that is onerous ,
ls .
shall be recognised and measured as accrua
only when an entity :
A constr uctive obliga tion to restru cture arises
cturing , identifying at least :
restru
the
for
plan
l
forma
ed
detail
a
Has

the bus mess or part of a business concerned;
the principal locations affect ed ;
er of employees who
the location , function , and approximate numb
s;
service
will be compensated for terminating their
;
taken
the expenditures that will be under
when the plan will be implemented ; and
ed that it will carry out the
Has raised a valid expectation in those affect
or announcing its main
plan
that
restructuring by staring to implement
features to those affected by it.
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1. 9 Accruals and contingencies {conti .ed
After their initial recognition. contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations
that are recognised separately are subsequently measure at the higher of:
The amount that would be recogmsed as a proV1s10n; and
The amount initially recogmsed less cumulative amort1sat10n.

Contmgent assets and contmgent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are
disclosed in note 26.
·

· v

Go e---;:nt grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
The Nat1onal Hentage Council will comply w1th the conditions attachmg to
them; and
The grants will be received.

Government grants are recogmsed as mcome over the penods necessary to match
them With the related costs that they are mtended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already mcurred or for the purpose of g1vmg immediate financ1al support to the entity
with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in wh1ch it becomes
receivable.
Government grants related to assets. inctudmg non-monetary grants at fa1r value, are
presented in the statement of finanoal pos1t1on by settmg up the grant as deferred
income or by deducting the grant m arnvmg at the carrying amount of the asset.
Grants related to income are presented as a credit m the income statement
(separately).

Repayment of a grant related to mcome 1s applied first against any un-amort1sed
deferred credit set up m respect of the grant. To the extent that the repayment
exceeds any such deferred credit, or were no deferred credit exists, the repayment IS
recogmsed immediately as an expense.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset 1s recorded by mcreasmg the carrymg amount
of the asset or reducmg the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The
cumulative additional depreciation that would have been recognised to date as an
expense m the absence of the grant, 1s recogmsed Immediately as an expense.
't.: •ue rt.-~og· ~10
Revenue comprises the fair value of considerations received or receivable in the
ordinary cause of Council's business. Revenue is also recognised as fallows:
Government grants as stated in accountmg policy 1.10
Interest Income
Interest mcome 1s recogmsed m the statement of finanoal performance on a t1me
proportionate bas1s usmg the effective interest rate method.

1. 12 Comparative figu

t!S

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes m
presentation m the current year.
The comparative figures shown in these financial statements are limited to the figures
shown m the prev10us years' aud1ted financial statements and such other comparat1ve
figures that the National Hentage Council may reasonably have available for reportmg
m terms of the Public Finance Management Act.
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1. 13 Unauthorised exp
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1 ... 5 Irregula r expend" ture (continu ed)
the person
Immediate steps must thereafte r be taken to recover the amount from
g authority
accountin
or
officer
g
accountin
the
,
possible
not
is
recovery
If
.
d
concerne
note to
may write off the amount as bad debt and disclose such in the relevant
updated
be
also
must
register
re
the financial statements. The Irregular expenditu
is liable
accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person
e/
programm
relevant
the
against
remain
must
thereto
related
re
in law, the expenditu
s and
statement
financial
the
to
note
the
in
such
as
disclosed
be
item,
re
expenditu
updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1. 6 Research and develop ment expe• d t re

ent costs
Research costs are charged against operating surplus as incurred. Developm
unless the
are recognised as an expense in the period in whiCh they are mcurred
following criteria are met:
the
The product or process is clearly defined and the costs attributable to
reliably;
measured
and
Identified
y
separatel
be
can
product
process or
The techniCal feasibility of the product or process can be demonstrated;
its
The existence of a market or, if to be used mternally rather than sold,
;
ated
demonstr
usefulness to the ent1ty can be
to
Adequate resources ex1st , or the1r availability can be demonstrated ,
and
process;
or
product
the
use
or
market
then
and
proJect
the
complete

7 Judgements made by Manage ment

judgements ,
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make
reported
the
and
policies
of
n
applicatio
the
affect
that
ns
estimates and assumptio
disclosures.
related
and
,
expenses
and
income
,
liabilities
assets,
of
amounts
le under the
Historical experience and various other factors believed to be reasonab
could differ
future
the
in
circumstances are used in these instances. Actual results
ing the
determin
in
exercised
been
has
t
from these estimates.Significant judgemen
following:

Fa ir va lue est imation
nt provision
The amortised cost (using the effective interest method), less impairme
values . The
fair
their
ate
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approxim
is assumed
method),
interest
effective
present value of future cash flows (using the
ns.
transactio
purchase
and
revenue
to approximate the fair value of

Impa irment test ing

indicating a
The entity makes judgement as to whether there is observeable data
, and in
asset
financial
a
from
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
assets.
l
individua
and
units
erating
determining the recoverable amounts of cash-gen

Property , Plant and Equipme nt
this involves
Residual values and useful lives are assessed on an annual basis and
estimates and judgement calls .

The asset must be separately identifiab le.

Pos t -retireme nt benefit obl igat ion
e baSIS
Where development costs are deferred , they are written off on a stra1ght·lm
. The
years
five
of
max1mum
a
to
subject
,
product
or
over the life of the process
of the
n
productio
ial
commerc
the
of
ement
commenc
the
from
amortisation begins
product or use of the process to whiCh they relate .

to note 13
Certain assumptions are based in the annual actuarial valuation . Refer

Provision s
management at
Provisions are based on estimates using the informati on available to
reporting date.
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1. 18 Commitments

ty or
state ment of financial position as a liabili
Commitments are not recognised in the
in note 21
ed
includ
are
but
ce
rman
perfo
ial
as expen diture in the state ment of financ
ents.
and disclosure notes to the financial statem

1.19 Services received in kind

the
rily of technical assistance received by
Services received in kind consist prima
Heritage
nal
Natio
The
ers.
memb
group
ct
National Heritage Council and proje
value for this assistance, and as a result
Council cannot reliab ly deter mine a fair
es received in the Statement of Financial
does not recognise the value of these servic
Performance.

1. 20 Related Parties

es
enviro nmen t curre ntly dominated by entiti
The Council operates in an economic
the
of
result
a
As
t.
nmen
African gover
direc tly on indire ctly owned by the South
es of government in South Africa, only
spher
three
all
of
ce
enden
indep
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t will be relate d parties.
nmen
parties within the natio nal sphere of gover
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duals with the autho rity and responsibil
Key management is defined as being indivi
tive
Execu
Chief
The
.
entity
activi ties of the
for planning, direc ting and contr olling the
the only positions regarded as being at key
are
r
Office
cial
Finan
Chief
the
and
Office r
management level.
ers
nt are considered to be those family memb
Close family members of key manageme
duals
indivi
nt
geme
mana
key
by
be influenced
who may be expec ted to influence, or
.
entity
the
to
d
relate
s
partie
or other

nting Standards Board (IASB) issued an
In February 2007, the International Accou
If
amend /AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.
exposure draft that contains proposal to
for
17
24.
/AS
in
ts
emen
requir
sure
disclo
adopted, the amendments will elimin ate
icantly influenced a state in relation to
some entitie s that are controlled or signif
or significantly influenced by that state.
transactions with other entitie s controlled
ue
to amend /AS 24, the Council will contin
However, until the IASB makes a decision
applying the requirements in /AS 24.

.21 Fn n•:e nc 'me
able on positive bank balances and funds
Finance income comprises interest receiv
nt
a time proportion basis, taking into accou
invested. Interest income is accrued on
ity.
matur
interest rate over the period to
the principal outstanding and the effec tive

1. 22 'v\,, :erial Losse

e
not comprise normal expenditure or incom
Material losses are losses incurred that do
due to the Council and not recovered.
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t1ve dates.
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the context of this entity's operations.
The impact of implement ing the standards is expected to be immateria l in
The following GRAP standards have been approved but are not yet effective:
GRAP 4

The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

GRAP 5

Borrowing Costs

GRAP 6

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP 7

Investments in Associate

GRAP 8

Interest in Joint Ventures

GRAP 9

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

GRAP 10

Financial Reporting in Hyperinfla tionary Economies

GRAP 11

Constructio n Contracts

GRAP 12

Inventories

GRAP 13

Leases

GRAP 14

Events after the reporting date

GRAP 16

Investmen t Property

GRAP 17

Property Plant and Equipment

GRAP 18

Segment Reporting

GRAP 19

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

GRAP 23

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)

GRAP 24
GRAP 100

Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
Non·curren t Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

GRAP 101

Agriculture

GRAP 102

Intangible Assets

to have a significant
adopting these GRAP Standards when they become effective is not expected
The effective dates of the above standards are not yet known. The effect of
GAAP.
applied under the equivalent Statement of SA
impact on the financial statements as the principles are similar to those already
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2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

29 ,965

36 ,670

65

65

3. Government grants a d subsidies
Grant received - Department of Arts and Culture

4 Arno-tised C011ditio11a' grant
Deparment of Arts and Culture (Non-currents assets)
Deparment of Arts and Culture (Special projects)

7,197

National Lottery - Special projects

7,952
15,214

65

5. 0 .her 'ncome
Sundry income

10

Assets written off

2

143

10

145

1,412

1, 621

General and administrative expenses

7,996

5,413

Travel and subsistence

3,643

3,639

11,639

9,052

6 11 vestment revenue
Interest revenue

7. Ad · istrative expenditure

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2009

2008

R' OOO

R' OOO

6,177

4,147

522

874

8. Employee related costs
Basic salaries
Employees' contributions · Provident Fund
Employees contributions · UIF
Leave and bonus provision
Council contributions · Provident Fund

23

9

1,201

329

522

831

Council contributions · UIF

23

10

Council contributions · SDL

63

24

8,531

6,224

397

397

9. Operating lease expenses
Office space
Parking

37

37

434

434

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

NOTES TO Ti-lE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

70

4

.,... Ot' e· onerating expenses
Legal fees
Entertainment expenses
Heritage projects and programmes
Staff training and development
Maintenance, repairs and running costs

-ec'~tion

147

43

31,980

23 ,807

386

254

55

39

32,638

24,1 47

and amortisation

Depreciation
Motor veh icles
IT equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Leasehold improvement
Leased assets - office equipment

28

28

91

68

42

35

152

128

83

50

138

150

534

459

26

3

Amortisation
Computer software
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12. Property , plant and equipm ent
2008

2009

Accumula ted
Deprecia tion (R ' OOO)

Carrying Value
(R'OOO)

CostNalu ation
(R'OOO)

Accumula ted
Deprecia tion (R'OOO)

Carrying Value
(R ' OOO)

CostNalu ation
(R'OOO)

246

(137)

109

217

(54)

163

Leasehold property

972

(508)

464

960

560

Furniture and fixtures

(400)

142

(118)

24

142

(90)

52

Motor vehicles

(138)

144

244

142

Office equipme nt

282

(102)

(111)

376

443

155

487

(288)

IT equipme nt

(321)

367

688

505

688

(1 83)

Leased assets

(1, 333 )

1,484

2,694

(1 '11 7)

1, 577

2, 817

- 2009
Reconcil iation of moveme nts in property, plant and equipme nt
Additions (R'OOO)
Opening Balance (R'OOO)

Disposals (R ' OOO)

Deprecia tion (R' OOO)

Total (R ' OOO)

-83

109

-152

464

-28

24
144

Total

Leasehold property

163

29

Furniture and fixtures

560

77

Motor vehicles

-21

52

Office equipme nt

142

48

-4

-42

31 8

-6

376

155

-91

IT equipme nt
Leased assets

505

-138

367

- 534

1,484

Total

1, 577

472

-31
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·operty. plant and equipment (continw d)
Reconciliatio n of movements in property plant and equipment - 2008
'
Opening Balance (R'OOO)
Leasehold property
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

80
390

Additions (R'OOO)

Depreciatio n (R'OOO)

Total (R'OOO)

133

(50)

163

298

(12 8)

560

(2 8)

52

80
110

66

IT equipment

91

132

Leased assets

796

Total

Disposals (R'OOO)

1,547

629

(34)

142

(68 )

155

(141)

(150)

505

(141)

(458)

1,577

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Public Finance Management
Act is available for inspection at the registered office of the National Heritage
Council.

The NHC received non-monetary grants in respect of depreciable assets which are allocated
to the income over the period of depreciation . (Refer to note 19)

13. Intangible assets
2009
CostNaluatio n
Computer software

2008

(R'OOO)

Accumulated
Amortisation (R'OOO)

Carrying Value

CostNaluat ion

(R'OOO)

176

(26)

150

Carrying Value

(R'OOO)

Accumulate d
Amortisatio n (R'OOO)

196

(163)

33

(R'OOO)
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13. Intangible assets (continued)
Reconciliation of movement intangible assets - 2009

Com puter software, other

Opening Balance (R'OOO)

Additions (R'OOO)

Amortisation (R'OOO)

Total (R'OOO)

33

143

(26)

150

Opening Balance (R'OOO)

Additions (R'OOO)

Amortisation (R'OOO)

Total (R'OOO)

4

32

(3)

33

Reconciliation of movement in intangible assets - 2008

Computer software, other
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2009

2008

R' OOO

R' OOO

91

226

1 t. T- ade and other receivables
Sundry debtors
Staff debtors
Interest receivable

17

24

137

138

245

388

5 Prepayments and advances
Deposit for rent

42

42

Pre-payment and advances

18

24

60

66

6. Cash

d cash equivalents

Cash on hand

2

Cash at bank

16

Funds held on call

531

18,612

16,271

18,629

16,804

Refer to Note 30 on Financial Instruments on how risk 1s managed in relation to the financial
assets listed above .

•C

p t

and •eserves

Opening net fund
Deficit for the year

13,903

15,794

(7,272}

(1,891}

6,631

13,903
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2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

Within one year

190

165

In second to fifth year inclusive

378

568

568

733

Less : Future finance charges

(81)

(140)

Present value of minimum lease payments

487

593

144

106

18. Finance Lease obligation
Minimum lease payments due

Present value of minimum lease payments due
Within one year
In second to fifth year inclusive

Long-term portion of finance lease obligation
Current portion of finance lease obligation

343

487

487

593

343

487

144

106

487

593

It is National Heritage Council policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The National Heritage Council entered into a rental operational agreement with ITEC Finance Limited for two photocopy machines effective 1 December 2006 . The contract
period is for 60 months at R136 ,800 per annum using a 15% escalation rate. Additional finance cost are charged by the lessor which are based on the prime rate , thus
attracting additional finance costs which are not included in the above reconciliation. The lease is accounted for as a finance lease since the lease term is for the major part
of the economic life of the assets, even though the title to the asset may not be transferred on expiry of the lease term.

19 Deferred income I Unspent condibonal grants and receipts
Furniture (non - current assets) bought on behalf of the National Heritage Council by the National Department of Arts and Culture amounting to R390 ,475 in 2004 , and
amortised at an amount of R65 ,000 per annum over six (6 ) years .
Conditional grants (special projects) amounting to R9 ,003 ,044 .00 relates to funding of special projects for the 2008 / 09 financial year, not yet awarded. These amounts are
invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised .
Conditional grants (special projects) relates to National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund funding of special projects for the 2008 / 09 financial year amounting to R7 , 952 , 391.
These amounts were fully utilised for the intended projects .

2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

65

130

Deferred income comprises :

Condit ional !!rants and receipts
Non -current assets
Conditional grants (special projects - DAC)

9,003

Conditional grants (special projects - National Lottery)

7,952

17,020

130
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19. Deferred income I Unspent conditional grants and receipts (continued)
2009

2008

R' OOO

R' OOO

130

195

24,152

(65)

Movement during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Grants received in the current year
Grant income recognised during the year

(15, 214)
9,068

130

65

130

Balance at year end
Non-current assets
Conditional grants (special projects - DAC)

9,003
9, 068

130

9, 068

65

9,068

130

2,731

3,323

310

208

65

Long term portion of the deferred income
Current term portion of the deferred income

20. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Salary related payables
Operating lease payables

77

112

3, 118

3, 643
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21. Ace ·uals
Reconci liation of moveme nts in accruals • 2009
Opening balance
(R'OOO)

Addition s
(R'OOO)

Utilised during the year
(R'OOO)

Reversed during the year
(R'OOO)

(120)

Total
(R'OOO)

Leave accruals

275

230

(155 )

Bonus accruals

324

1,090

(380)

599

1, 320

(535)

(120)

1,264

Opening balance
(R'OOO)

Addition s
(R'OOO)

Leave accruals

Utilised during the year
(R'OOO)

228

Reversed during the year
(R'OOO)

Total
(R'OOO)

275

Bonus acc ruals

(39 )

350

(189)

275

324

(270)

578

(80)

324

599

(309)

(269)

599

Total

230
1,034

Reconci liation of moveme nts in accruals · 2008

Total
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2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

(7,272)

(1, 891 )

22. Cash generated from (used in) operations
Deficit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation

534

Assets written off
Amortisation on intangible assets
Interest received
Movement in provisions
Other non-cash items

458
(143)

26

3

(1,412)

(1,621)

665

329

31

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables

143

(194)

6

(24)

Trade and other payables

(525)

2,475

Deferred income/Unspent conditional grants and receipts

9,003

Deferred income/Unspent conditional grants and receipts

(65)

(65)

1,134

(673)

Prepayments and advances
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2009

2008

R'OOO

R'OOO

23. Ooe at' g ease
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the National Heritage Council for its
office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years and rentals are fixed
for an average of five years. No contingent rent is payable.

The National Heritage Council entered into a rental agreement with the Broil Property Group ,
effective 1 April 2005 . The lease contract is for 60 months at a cost of R428,839 per annum.
Amounts due
Up to one year

434

434

434

868

Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Total va lue of lease liabilit ies

434

14. Fi ,a ce costs
Bank charges
Interest paid on leased assets

3

3

68

71

71

74
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2009

2008

R' OOO

R'OOO

Tenders awarded but not yet paid

3,688

5,044

Funding Disbursements

2,355

11 , 779

6,043

16, 823

25. Commitments

This committed expenditure related to tenders awarded but not yet paid , and funded projects
in completion.

26. Contingencies
Litigation is in process against the National Heritage Council relating to a dispute with NRB Risk
Solutions Limited who alleges that the National Heritage Council has failed and / or omitted to
pay timeously and / or all the agreed monthly rentals and is seeking damages of R 922 , 567 . The
National Heritage Council 's lawyers and management consider the likelihood of the action against
the National Heritage Council being successful as unlikely, and the case should be resolved within
the next two years .
There has been an enquiry by NEHAWU requesting information that relates to a dispute with a
former employee who alleges that the National Heritage Council has terminated her employment
unfairly. The former employee is requesting compensation for unfair dismissal. The National
Heritage Council Management considers the likelihood of the action against the National Heritage
Council being successful as unlikely. No legal action has been instituted against the National
Heritage Council.
There is no reimbursement from any third parties for potential obligations of the National
Heritage Council.
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2009

2008

R' OOO

R' OOO

Grant - Recurring expenditure (Depertment of Arts and Culture)

29 ,965

36,670

Grant- Special Projects (Department of Arts and Culture)

16,200

27 Related parties
Related party transactions

National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund

7,952
54,117

36,670

The National Heritage Council is a schedule 3A public entity under the National Department
of Arts and Culture. The Department of Arts and Culture acts on behalf of the Minister of Arts
and Culture as Executive Authority and has the responsibility to make provision for funding
the
activities of the Council by way of a grant listed in the Estimates of National Expenditure. The
National Heritage Council received R 29,965,000 and R 16,200,000 as grants for the year under
review. By virtue of the fact that the Nat10nal Heritage Council is a national public entity
and
controlled by the national government, any other controlled entity of the national government
is
a related party. All transactions with such entitles are at arm's length and on normal commercial
terms, except where employees of national departments or national public entities participate
in
our processes and do not receive any remuneration. The National Department of Arts and Culture
is the related party of the National Heritage Council.

The National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund has made provision for funding activities/pr ojects
of the Council.The National Heritage Council received R 7,952,391 as grants for the year under
review. By virtue of the fact that the National Heritage Council is a national public entity
and
controlled by the national government , any other controlled entity of the national government
is
a related party. All transactions with such entitles are at arm's length and on normal commercial
terms. The National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund IS the related party of the National Heritage
Council.
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28. Prior year adjustments

the comparative amounts were restated accordingly.
Correction of error relating to understatemen t travel expenses. The surplus for the year 2008 was adjusted while
follows:
as
was
2008
of
results
the
on
The effect of the adjustment of this error
R' OOO
Effect in 2008
2, 302
Increase the travel expense
1, 953
Increase in trade and other payables
349
Decrease in trade and other receivables
while the comparative amounts were restated accordingly.
Correction of error relating to overstatement of operating expenses. The surplus for the year 2008 was adjusted
The effect of the adjustment of this error on the results of 2008 was as follows:
Effect in 2008
(41)
Decrease in operating expenses
(41)
payables
Drecrease in trade and other
surplus were adjusted while the comparative amounts
Correction of error relating to understatement operating lease expenses. The surplus for the year 2008 and accumulated
follows:
as
was
2008
of
results
were restated accordingly. The effect of the adjustment of this error on the
Effect in 2008
5
Increase in operating lease expenses
27
Increase in trade and other payables
(22)
Decrease in accumulated surplus
was adjusted while the comparative amounts were restated
Correction of error relating to overstatement of trade and other receivables. The surplus for the year 2008
accordingly. The effect of the adjustment of this error on the results of 2008 was as follows:
Effect in 2008
57
Increase in other operating expenses
(57)
Decrease in trade and other receivables
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29. Members' emoluments
Non -executive • 2009
Names
P N Maqubela

Honoraria (R)

Travel (R)

Total (R)

Designation

5,971

110

6,081

Chairperson

3,124

Deputy Chairperson

R M 0 Ratebipi·Simela

3,124

C 5 Rassool

5,383

794

6,177

Council Member

L Callinicos

6,416

172

6, 588

Council Member

K T Ntsewa

5,475

1,330

L P Nkosi

2,780

P Seboni

5,335

1,425

6, 805

Council Member

2,780

Council Member

6,760

Council Member

M Maboe

Council Member

K Mkiva

2,780

H Boshoff

1,570

2,780

Council Member

1,570

Council Member

J Mdeni

13,409

3,031

16,440

T 0 Ntuli

7,803

327

8,130

Audit Committee Member

N Jaxa

3,016

166

3,182

Audit Committee Member

63 ,062

7, 355

70 ,417

Total

102 ,

Council Member and Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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29 Members' emoluments (continued)
Non-executi ve - 2008
Travel (R)

Total (R)

1,560

1,026

2,586

Chairperson

R M D Ralebipi-Simela

1'195

2,445

3,640

Deputy Chairperson

C S Rassool

1,390

26

1,416

Council Member

1,390

Council Member

Names
P N Maqubela

Honoraria (R)

Designation

L Callinicos

1,390

K T Ntsewa

1,390

707

2,097

Council Member

695

523

1,218

Council Member

1,390

459

1,849

Council Member
Council Member

P Seboni
G P Mapalala
K Mkiva

695

695

J Mdeni

1,390

1,390

Council Member and Chairperson of the Audit Committee

T D Ntuli

2,406

324

2,730

Audit Committee Member

N Jaxa

2,406

426

2,832

Audit Committee Member

15 ,907

5,936

21, 843

Total
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29. Members' emoluments (continued)
Exec uti ve - 2009
Hames

Designation

Effective date

Basic salary

Travel allowance

Annual payments

Provident fund

Total

(R)

(R

(R)

(R)

(R)

Chief Executive Officer

1·Apr·08

584,666

150,186

218,544

127,102

1,080,497

··s Fikeni

Chief Operations Officer

1-Apr-08

172,340

20,322

72,557

16,407

281,626

"T Ngetu

Chief Financial Officer

1·Apr·08

204,693

55,754

80,065

44,653

385,165

45,456

295,256

67,596

37,492

320,396

37' 163

247,752

30,431

87,606

624,543

22,823

87,606

616,930

S Mancotywa

N Madilonga

Chief Financial Officer

10·Nov·08

249,800

"T Ramgoma

Company Secretary

1-Apr-08

172,176

43,132

N Matanzima

Company Secretary

1·Nov-08

167,458

43,131

D Goulkan

Marketing Manager

1-Apr-08

402,989

103,517

B Marolen

Human Resources Manager

1·Apr·08

506,501

S Ndhlazi

Funding Manager

1-Apr-08

402,989

103,517

30,431

87,606

624,543

T Manetsi

Heritage Manager

1·Apr·08

402,985

103,517

10,144

87,606

604,252

3,266 , 597

623,076

532 , 591

658 ,697

5,080 ,960

To t a l

"Resigned during the Financial year
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29. Members' emoluments (continued)
Executive - 2008
Basic salary
(R)

Travel allowance
(R)

Annual payments
(R)

Provident fund
(R)

Total
(R)

1-Apr-08

512,069

150,180

44 , 254

116,868

823 , 371

1-Apr-08

415,731

121,930

33,815

94,881

666,357
577,049

Name

Designation

Effective date

S Mancotywa

Chief Executive Officer

S Fikeni

Chief Operations Officer

T Ngetu

Chief Financial Officer

1-Apr-08

358,065

111,507

24 , 611

82,866

T Ramagoma

Company Secretary

1-Apr-08

352,951

103,517

28,709

80,553

565,730

28,709

80,553

565,730

21,531

80,5 51

558,540

28,709

80 ,553

565,730

D Goulkan

Marketing Manager

1-Apr-08

352 ,951

103,517

B Marolen

Human Resources Manager

1-Apr-08

456,458

S Ndhlazi

Funding Manager

1-Apr-08

352,951

103,517

T Manetsi

Heritage Manager

1-Apr-08

117, 647

34,506

Total

2,918,823

728,674

210 , 338

26,850

179,003

643,675

4,501,510

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

NO:ES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30. R·sk management
Li quidit y ri sk
The National Heritage Council is exposed to liquidity risk only with regards to the payment of its trade payables. These trade payables are
all due within the short term.
The National Heritage Council manages its liquidity risk by holding sufficient cash in its bank account, supplemented by cash available in a money
market account.
At 31 March 2009
Trade and other payables
At 31 March 2008
Trade and other payables

Carrying amount (R' OOO)

Less than 1 year (R'OOO)

3,11 8

3,11 8

Carryi ng amount

Less than 1 year

3, 643

3, 643

Cr edit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits , cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The National Heritage Council
deposits cash only with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any other country-party.
The ageing of trade receivables at reporting date was:

Not past due

Gross 2009 Age Analysis (R' OOO )

Gross 2008 Age Analysis (R' OOO)

214

454

Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 120 days
Past due 121 - 180 days

91

Past due 181 - 365 days
Total

305

454
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Interest Rate risk

1n the financial
ts will fluctuate as a resu l t of changes in the market mterest rates . Values
This is a risk that fair value or future cash flows from financial instrumen
interest rate
market
t
significan
to
it
expose
not
do
activities
s
'
Council
Heritage
. The National
instrumen ts may change , thus resulting in both potential gains and losses
risks.
risks. Therefore , there are no procedures in place to mitigate these

31. Subsequent evens

April 2009. The contract
t with ITEC Finance Limited for three photocopy machines effective 1
The National Heritage Council entered into a rental operation al agreemen
prime rate . The lease is
the
on
based
is
rate. Additional finance cost is charged by the lessor which
period is 60 months at R 182 ,217.60 per annum using a 15% escalation
not be transferred on
may
asset
the
to
itle
t
the
part of the economic life of the assets, even though
accounted for as finance lease since the lease term is for the major
expiry of the lease term .
. The lease contract is for 12
Broll Property Group, for additional office space effective 1 April2009
The National Heritage Council entered into a rental agreement with
months at a cost of R 255,716 per annum.

NOTES

The National Heritage Council

Postal Address:

Email:

nhc@nhc.org.za

PO Box 74097, Lynnwood Ridge, South Africa, 0040

Phone:

+27 12 348 1663/8233

Physical Address:

Fax:

+27 12 348 2833

Domus Building, Office no. 016,
57 Kasteel Road (corner of Kasteel & lngersol Road),
Lynnwood Glen, South Africa, 0081

